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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment risk
may be attached. In particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability nor any
obligation to forecast future profitability. Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature of
companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries in which the companies operate. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to
invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean
that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is publication on the internet website operated by the
Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid announcements in gazetted newspapers.
Accordingly, prospective investors should note that they need to have access to the GEM website in order to
obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed issuers.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (“Directors”) of Shine Science & Technology (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the GEM
Listing Rules for the purpose of giving information with regard to Shine Science & Technology (Holdings)
Limited. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this report
misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration
and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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CORPORATE PROFILE

I Ry

Shine Science & Technology (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
conducted in business principally through its operating
arm in China (the “PRC”), namely, Fujian Shine Science
Company Limited and Shanghai Shine Science Company
Limited. The Company was incorporated in Cayman
Islands as an exempted company with limited liability in
July 2002 and, through reorganization, the Company has
become the ultimate holding company of the Group in
July 2003. The shares of the Company was initially listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 12th August 2003.

The Group is principally engaged in research and
development of software solutions specially targetting the
financial and securities sectors in the PRC. Headquartered
in Fujian, the Group has a development and servicing
network covering cities including Beijing, Shanghai,
Shenzhen and Fuzhou where the national stock exchanges
and majority of the financial institutions’ headquarters are
based. The comprehensive spectrum of the Group’s
software solutions was centrally developed in our software
development centres in Fuzhou and Shanghai, and
implemented, customised and supported by our local
servicing teams.

Through its years of corporate developments, the Group
succeed in building up its reputation and brand prestige
and has experienced phenomenal growth. The Group is
currently one of the predominant, preferred solution
providers of securities community in the PRC, rendering
hardware, peripherals and professional services in

complement to its corporate software solution offerings.
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CORPORATE PROFILE

NI Ry

The Group’s products have received high recognition
especially in the domestic securities community. Currently,
all of the clearing participants of the PRC securities market,
including participants like China Securities Depository &
Clearing Corporation, clearing banks and all operating
securities companies in the PRC, are using the Group’s
securities primary clearing products. Further, the Group’s
securities secondary clearing product is enjoying a
prevailing market share exceeding 81% in the PRC.

Besides its strong competitive advantage in the business
domain, the Group is backed up with a seasoned
management team with extensive experiences in domestic
securities and financial practises and a strong and
innovative team of research and development professionals
including veteran with high calibre expertise in software,
hardware and network technology.

Leveraging on its expertise and defined strategies to deliver
cost-effective corporate solution to market participants,
the Group is also expanding its product line to cover
other back-office solutions to serve the diversified needs
of the domestic securities, investment trust and wealth
management communities. As our corporate mission, the
Group will work to enhance its position to be the best
solution provider for the financial and securities sectors in
China.
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CORPORATE PROFILE
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Corporate Structure
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

BERBFEFXREBESA

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General
Meeting of Shine Science & Technology (Holdings) Limited
(the “Company”) will be held at Unit 03, 16th Floor,
Fairmont House, 8 Cotton Tree Drive, Admiralty, Hong
Kong on Monday, 26th April 2004, at 3:00 p.m. for the
purpose of considering and, if thought fit, passing the
following resolutions:

(1) To receive and adopt the audited financial
statements together with the reports of the directors
and auditors for the year ended 31st December
2003;

2) To consider and declare a final dividend for the
year ended 31st December 2003;

(3) To re-elect the retiring directors and to authorize
the directors to fix their remunerations; and

(4) To re-appoint the retiring auditors and to authorize
the directors to fix their remuneration.

By order of the Board
Shine Science & Technology (Holdings) Limited
Cheng Yun Ming, Matthew
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 23rd March 2004

*

for identification purpose only
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

BRREFREG B

Head Office and Principal Place of Business: i EEFT EL X

Unit 03, 16th Floor &
Fairmont House ik

8 Cotton Tree Drive AT 4% % 857
Admiralty REKE
Hong Kong 161203
Registered Office: A EE -

Century Yard, Cricket Square Century Yard, Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681 GT

George Town

Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681 GT
George Town
Grand Cayman
British West Indies

Grand Cayman
British West Indies

Notes: B it

REFMERLRE LHBAEARIAGLNE £
KREZRE B RE BN EREEEZ
RERRZABAREAARERE-RER
RBERRRARR-

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting 1.
convened by the above notice may appoint one or more
proxies to attend the meeting and vote on a poll instead
of him. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

PR EREEAZRREZERB - HEEA
R BIRREERBANEZEE A R
EREZRBEEAREEAREZREAL

2. A form of proxy of the meeting is enclosed. If the 2.
appointer is a corporation, the form of proxy must be
made under its common seal or, under the hand of an

officer or attorney duly authorized on its behalf. BEo
3. Where there are joint registered holders of any shares, 3. MEBRMABAECHBEARE L5

any one of such persons may vote at the above meeting
(or at any adjournment thereof), either personally or by
proxy, in respect of such share as if he were solely entitled
thereto; but if more than one of such joint holders by
present at the above meeting personally or by proxy,
that one of the said persons so present whose name
stands first on the register of members of the Company
in respect of such share shall alone be entitled to vote in
respect thereof.

Delivery of an instrument appointing a proxy shall not
preclude a shareholder from attending and voting in
person at the meeting and in such event, the instrument
appointing a proxy shall be deemed to be revoked.

ANNUAL REPORT 2003
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

BERBFEFXREBESA

To be valid, a form of proxy and the power of authority (if
any) under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy
of such power of authority must be deposited at the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in
Hong Kong, Tengis Limited at Ground Floor, Bank of
East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road,
Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time
appointed for holding the meeting or the adjourned
meeting.

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, 20th April 2004 to Monday, 26th April
2004, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the
proposed final dividends, all transfers, accompanied by
the relevant share certificates, must be lodged for
registration with the Company’s registrar, Tengis Limited,
at the above address not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday,
19th April 2004.
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR

M EFERE

Commencement of dealing in the Shares on GEM

BB ERIEREE R H

Announcement of third quarterly results

NE=ZFEERE

Announcement of final results

N2 FEE

Ex-dividend date for dividends
IZ/% /%\ El /HH

Book closing dates
EEmeERhBPERL BH

Annual General Meeting for 2004
—ETMERRBERE

Record date for dividends
&% B 50 &% B Hf

Payment date for dividend
kAT AR 2 A H
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12th August 2003
—22=%/\A+=H

11th November 2003
—EE=F+-A+-H

23rd March 2004
—EENF=ZA-_+=H

16th April 2004
—ZEEWENA+XHE

20th April 2004 to 26th April 2004
(both days inclusive)

—EEMENA-+RE_SENFMA=-+/XAH

(BREEMA)

26th April 2004
—“EEWENA = +xA

26th April 2004
—ETNFMEA=-1 XA

30th April 2004
—EENERNA=+H



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHT

MEREE

(Expressed in Renminbi thousand dollars) (UARETFTINME)

Year ended 31st December

BE+t-A=t-HLEE

2003 2002 2001
—®B=F —TTCF —ET-F
(Restated) (Restated)
(Z4) (Z3)

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS mERE
Turnover ] 16,287 39,904 29,507
Profit attributable to shareholders % 5 A v 708 13,165 4,159
Dividends 35 1,703 7,000 3,000
Dividends pay-out ratio & B =& 240.5% 53.2% 72.1%

Turnover & ¥ 58
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20,000

10,000

2003 2002 2001



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHT

BEBEREE

(Expressed in Renminbi thousand dollars) (MAE#®BTFT3E)

As at 31st December

R+t=ZA=+-—-H
2003 2002 2001
—®B=F —_ —ET-F
(Restated) (Restated)
(E31) (E7)
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS GEEEREAE
AND LIABILITIES

Total assets mEE 56,277 41,150 28,672

Total liabilities (Note 3) mEB (Wa3) (6,797) (32,308) (9,542)

Minority interests DR R ER (488) (2,103) (724)

Shareholders’ funds BERES 48,992 6,739 18,406

Shareholders’ funds RERE L
50,000
40,000 |
30,000
20,000 ¢
10,000 F
2003 2002 2001

Notes: Bt -

1. The Company was incorporated in Cayman Islands in 1. KRR EE-_FLtAERSHEEMKZ
July 2002 as an exempted company with limited liability BERPERAR ERASHMR T =
and became the holding Company of the Group in July FHARAEAEBZIERAR BEFBHR
2003 as a result of the Reorganization as set out in the ARRHBHAZZZ="F\ANBZ2BRERER
Company’s IPO prospectus dated 4th August 2003 (the (BRER]) Bt AR RRERELEEE
“IPO Prospectus”). Accordingly, the earliest available EABRZFERBE-_ZETE=F+=-A=+
consolidated balance sheet prepared by the Company is —BIEFE-

for the year ended 31st December 2003.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHT

MEREE

(Expressed in Renminbi thousand dollars)

Notwithstanding the aforesaid, the reorganization referred
to note 1(a) to the financial statements has been reflected
in the financial summary by treating the Company as
having been the holding company of the Group for the
earliest period presented above.

The results of the Group for the two consecutive financial
years ended 31st December 2002 and the consolidated
balance sheets as at 31st December 2001 and 2002
have been prepared on a combined basis as if the current
group structure had been in existence throughout the
years concerned and have been extracted from the
Company’s IPO Prospectus and as restated to the extent
of taking into account the financial effects of adopting
the new “Hong Kong Statement of Standard Accounting
Practice 12 (Revised): Income Taxes”. For details of the
said change in accounting policy, please refer to note 3
to the financial statements.

Total liabilities as at 31st December 2002 included
convertible notes with total face value of HK$14,000,000
which was subsequently entirely converted and capitalized
as Shares of the Company pursuant to the Reorganisation
as set out in the Company’s IPO Prospectus.

(UABHFriE)

BE LE MBRERME (ML EREBE
ARBER/EN L &P HRK AR EBZR
RAMAR MR R
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—ER_FF_A=t-RBzHAREEARE
R DEAHEEIBRRAEEEERBEREAR
FE-—EFEMME LN ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ(%fﬁ%ﬁ@
ARBZHERER WRERKT [BEE
BEREAE125% (RIBET) S HIA] ZE'JH’%
FEMmMAESEY A LG REREH 2
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B3 45 44 TE {E 14,000,00058 7T /] B IR Z 45 3%
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW

The year 2003 was another challenging but memorable
year for both the China domestic securities market and
the Group.

Notwithstanding domestic economy in China remained
strong, under a shroud of prolonged bearish sentiment
for years, the PRC securities market experienced
continuous declines in terms of trading volume and market
capitalization. At the end of 2003, the composite indexes
of the Shanghai Stock Exchange and Shenzhen Stock
Exchange declined by approximately 33% and 43%
respectively as compared to their historical highs.

Confronted with an arid and deteriorating business
environment and as further aggravated by the emanating
outbreak of SARS (Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome)
in China during 2003, the profitability of domestic securities
institutions was severely impacted and many domestic
securities institutions were under merger or reorganization.
Majority of the securities institutions therefore continued
to either postpone or dampen their information technology
investments in 2003. Overall demand for securities
information technology products remained sluggish.

As the Group’s operation is critically dependent upon the
scale of information technology investment by domestic
financial and securities industries, the financial results of
the Group for 2003 were also adversely affected
temporarily. Undoubtedly, 2003 was the most difficult year
that we had ever experienced in our corporate history.

During the year, the Group recorded a profit attributable
to shareholders of approximately RMB708,000,
representing a decrease of 95% as compared to prior
year, but continued to be in a strong financial position. As
at 31st December 2003, the Group had net assets of
approximately RMB49 million, including total cash, bank
and deposit balances of RMB40 million approximately.

ANNUAL REPORT 2003
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW (Continued)

During the year, despite under such complex environment
for the securities information technology business, the
Group has maintained its access to the Hong Kong
securities market and raising a gross proceed of
approximately HK$35.5 million for its business expansion.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENTS AND CONTROLS

The Group believes timely development and marketing of
quality, cost-effective solutions which serve the needs of
users will be the key to success amidst today’s increasingly
competitive global environment. During the year, the Group
has successfully made an earlier product delivery for new
modules of E-SIM and further enlarged its market share
in securities secondary clearing products from 70% in
2002 to over 81% by the end of 2003. Meanwhile, E-SIM
has been successfully interfaced with platforms of six
banks with national coverage, which providing the Group
with an exclusive edge in the area of securities information
technology, as well as further strengthening its leading
position in securities clearing and settlement arena, well-
prepared for the development of extended products.
During the year under review, the Group also launched its
corporate solutions targetting domestic open-end
investment funds. These new software solutions have
proved to receive good market response. Further, the
Group has collaboration with a world-renowned software
developer for joint product promotion and possibly,
integrated solution development. Such collaboration
arrangement may, among other potential benefits,
effectively shorten the development cycle of our product
portfolio without compromising our commitment on
product quality assurance.

Internally, in addition to continuously exercising rigorous
cost control measures, the Group during the year
underwent considerable realignment in business structure
and implemented a series of adjustments by streamlining
and systematizing our corporate management procedures
in areas including product planning, quality assurance,
progress reporting and staff training. Performance
evaluation was also refined to accompany with an
accountability mechanism to further promote the Group’s
operational quality and efficiency. We believe these
measures will create a solid foundation for the Group’s
long-term development.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

On 31st January 2004, the State Council of China
announced a strategic statement, “Bl 75 Bt B8 52 # i & K
TSR ERBMBEERNE TER”, which formulated
the administration’s official view and strategic direction in
respect of the long-term development of domestic
securities industry. This guiding principle statement set
out certain potential structural changes to the securities
industries in various aspects including, inter alias, the
overall enhancements in corporate governance and
shareholders’ protection frameworks in domestic listed
companies, principles regarding proposed disposition of
the Government’s stakes in domestic listed stated-owned
enterprises, the relaxation of restrictions on the use of
financial derivative and potential adjustments to the existing
securities clearing systems for stock and bond etc. In
fact, the effect of the proposed changes manifest
conspicuously whereas the composite indexes of the
Shanghai Stock Exchange and Shenzhen Stock Exchange
successfully recapture its robust momentum and
upsurged, persistently and
distinctly in early 2004. As a result, with this promising
sign of recovery, the operating environment appears to
be more favourable in the year ahead.

its first time since 2001,

In narrow speaking, as a result of the said changes, the
prevailing securities clearing system in Mainland China
will face substantial modifications in the future. For
example, the “Delivery versus Payment (DVP)” mechanism,
an international generally-accepted securities clearing and
settlement practice, will be introduced in China in an
attempt to minimize the overall market pressure and risk
exposure (resulting from overdraft of clearing participants)
on the said clearing system. This implies an explicit
business expansion opportunity for SHINE’s securities
clearing products.

In a broader sense, the said strategic statement, together
with the expected corresponding amendments to
Securities Laws in PRC, will, at a considerable extent,
minimize the uncertainty prevailing in the China securities
market and will, on a long-term basis, promote the positive
market sentiment among the investing publics. In this
connection, all the softwares for domestic securities
industries will also be benefited as a whole.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK (Continued)

Although there are still uncertainties with the domestic
securities information technology sector whereas the 2004
outlook for full recovery in the sector is still arguably with
mixed views, we believe the worst commercial condition
has come to an end. Due to the aforesaid favorable factors
regarding policies and market conditions, we expect the
investment in information technologies by the securities
industry will be significantly enhanced, and the promotion
of SHINE’s products, in particular its new product
offerings, will be welcomed by external environment.
Therefore, The Group is optimistic about its operation in
the year ahead in 2004 but is also well prepared for
another challenging year.

Notwithstanding the aforesaid, on a longer-term
perspective, with the expected resurgence in domestic
securities market, coupled with our excellent research and
development capability and strengthened competitiveness
through the said management improvement measures, we
are confident the Group is well positioned to capitalize on
expansion opportunities and will resume to its track to
profitability in the near future.

APPRECIATION

Finally, | give my sincerest thanks to my fellow directors
and our colleagues for their unwavering dedications and
significant contributions rendered under such extremely
difficult market condition. | am confident that their
endeavors will continue to strive for the satisfactory results
of the Group in the year ahead. On behalf of the Board, |
would also like to take this opportunity to extend our
heartfelt gratitude to our shareholders, customers and
business associates for their continuous support and
confidence in the Group.

Gu Yun
Chairperson

23rd March 2004
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Overall Performance

During the year ended 31st December 2003, the Group
recorded a consolidated turnover and profit attributable
to shareholders of approximately RMB16 million and
RMB708,000 respectively, representing approximately 59%
(or RMB23.6 million) decrease in turnover and 95% (or
RMB12.5 million) decrease in profit attributable to
shareholders as compared to previous year.

The substantial decrease in profit attributable to
shareholders was mainly attributable to the following
factors:—

(1) decrease in turnover of the Group as a result of
recession in securities information technology

business in China;

2) general increase in operating expenses as further
discussed below.

Turnovers & Gross Profit Margin
Turnover by business operations for the two consecutive
years ended 31st December 2003 was summarized as

follows:

(expressed in Renminbi thousand dollars)

E¥EE
RERE

HE_ZTT=F+_A=1T—RHILFE F&£EH
DHEGREEEBRRBRREGENHOARE
16,000,0007T & A R #708,0007T A AR £
EEBRBEREMEENBDH59% (AR
23,600,0007T) K& 4195% (=k A K ¥ 12,500,000
JT)°

BREMEEM AR D TZHARUATEE:

(1) FEEFEAMEEBIEREHAE
ErERERD

@ TFXAGzAZSHEERZEREN.

EXBEREBRERN

(UARKTFLSE)
Year ended 31st December

BE+t-A=t—BHLFE

2003 2002

—EE=F —ETF

Software Sales M E 10,016 18,001
Hardware Sales EHEE 2,795 9,819
Network Construction Services P TRRRS 197 9,417
Technical Consultancy & Maintenances Rl g e M e vE 3,279 2,667
TOTAL “atr 16,287 39,904

ANNUAL REPORT 2003




AR DA

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (Continued)

Turnovers & Gross Profit Margin (Continued)

The decrease in consolidated turnover is principally
attributable to the sharp decreases in software, hardware
and, especially, in network construction incomes of the
Group. As a result of the prolonged downturn in China
stock market, information technology investments and
spending of the domestic securities industry was generally
aggravated. Consequently, the software, hardware and
network construction operations of the Group were
adversely affected significantly. Besides, under fierce
market competition, the Group has strategically trimmed
its non-core businesses of hardware distribution in view
of the pressurized profit margin and unjustifiably low
returns on capital employed of this operation.

The suppressed incomes derived from our software,
hardware and network construction business was,
nevertheless, partially offset by the increase in incomes
derived from our technical consultancy and maintenance
services by approximately 23% to RMB3.3 million.
Consequential to our enlarging accumulated software
client-base, the technical consultancy and maintenance
services remained less vulnerable to turbulent external
environment and produced a steadily growing income
source for the Group.

¥KEEE
SEERBEERN (4)

HHEGAEXBERI I ZARAEEN N &
R TR AKIE TR B L AMAR
TRR%ZK\RAFAR-EXHERET S
BEX BAFFENEREAMKRREEZMR-
At AEBEO R ERER TRERZE
BRETR N ERBEAERKE D HEBH
BEFABHR ZEXH2EARMNBREIE
MEMBRAZESEDBRIKEL  BAKE
EERNREIE BB IFZOEFDHER-

AEENRERFPERTE REEA BUEE S
ARAS S IR ER B M R W R N A R AR A RS P
XEBAHRD ARAEETERIBENRAE
ERR-BHUEBEASEOERMS M4 RBKT
R RBAN ST - M B35 58 K 4 18 AR5 W A 38
M#23%ZE A K #3,300,0007T &8 55 H 88 7 &
B R AR TR A 2 R g o
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (Continued)

Turnovers & Gross Profit Margin (Continued)

¥KOE®)

EXERBBREN ()

Turnover Composition (%)
BEHEIM(EIL)

2003
—REC-HFE

B Software Sales
B HE
[ Hardware Sales
B HE
] Network Construction Service
Mg TRRRB
Technical Consultancy & Maintenances

B A A R

As a combined effect of the Group’s strategic plan to
scale down its non-core hardware distribution operation
and the decrease in network construction business during
the year, the Group’s overall software, technical
consultancy and maintenances incomes, in terms of sale
proportion, increased significantly.

Notwithstanding the sales proportion of our software
business (which generally has a higher gross profit margin
as compared to other non-core businesses) increased
considerably, as the Group adopted an overall thinner
profit margin pricing policy during the year under review,
the overall gross profit margin of the Group for the year
was maintained at approximately 57% (2002: 57%).
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (Continued)

Other Revenue

Other revenue mainly represented value added tax refunds
in respect of distributing the Group’s self-developed
software which was maintained at a level comparable to

that of previous year.

Distribution Expenses

During the year, distribution expense increased by
approximately 11% to RMB3.4 million, principally due to
the inflationary adjustments and mild increase in
headcounts of our marketing team.

General and Administrative Expenses

Taken into accounts the increased administrative
overheads in relation to the Group’s continuing listing
obligations and the prudent provisioning for bad debt, the
general and administrative expenses was kept at a level
commensurate with the business activities.

Product Developments

During the year, the Group had increased its investments
in product development by approximately 27%, mainly
incurred on the Group’s Customer Relationship
Management, Securities Investment Management and
other softwares work-in-progress.

To strength the Group’s research, development and
implementation capacities, the Group has recruited and
engaged more talents especially the second half year of
2003.

¥KEEE
H b Uy 2%

HMB ST ERDHAKEAITRE ZEMHH
EEBENR - AREKREEBEFHES-

THEAX

FR DHEBAIENO11%E AR 3,400,000
T EEHRREBRMEBBAEMEMEAERSM
SHEREE TE B g

—RRATHMAX

BRERNAKERTHELLTEEMmMESE 2
THREBARELBERAOBRBEEN BRI
IR 32 M 4 Y B SR (B R A5 X IR LE B 7K S e

EmAR
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (Continued)

Given the highly-dynamic and volatile nature of the
securities information technology business, conscious
review is conducted, on on-going basis, on the Group’s
development projects. During the year, in view of the
lingering uncertain market condition, the Group has
deferred certain non-core projects with lower priority or
with increasingly uncertain business prospects but
concentrated its efforts in other products with tremendous
market potentials. Resumption of the said deferred
non-core projects will depend on the market condition.

Details of the change in the product development plan
was discussed under the sub-section headed “Comparison
of Business Objectives with Actual Business Progress”.
CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Through a placement of 118,250,000 new ordinary shares
to investors, the Group’s shares were successfully listed
on the GEM on 12th August 2003. Up to the date of this
report, there has been no change in the capital structure
of the Company since then.

Net proceeds of the placement, after deducting for relevant
expenses, amounted to approximately HK$25.2 million.
Details of the utilization of proceeds up to 31st December
2003 were summarized in the sub-section headed
“Comparison of Use of Proceeds”. During the year, apart
from utilization of proceeds above-mentioned, the Group
financed its operations and investing activities principally
through internally generated cash flows.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES (Continued)

Despite the difficult operating environment in its sectors,
the Group’s health financial profile were further
strengthened upon the completion of its initial public
offering whereas, as at 31st December 2003, the Group
had net assets of approximately RMB49 million, including
total cash, bank and deposit balances of approximately
RMB40 million. To mitigate financial risk, the Group has
implemented disciplined financial and risk managements
with minimum use of highly-geared financial arrangements.
The Group’s gearing ratio, as calculated by taking the
ratio of the Group’s total external borrowings, divided by
its shareholders fund, was zero. Further, the Group had
not charged on any of its assets as at 31st December
2008.

Taking into consideration of the existing financial resources
available to the Group, it is anticipated that the Group
should have adequate financial resources to meet its
ongoing operating commitments, which are principally in
respect of its investments in product developments and
technology, from its existing financial resources and
cashflows generated from its operation.

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF CAPITAL
INVESTMENTS

Since the Listing of the Company’s shares on GEM on
12th August 2003 and up to the date of this report, the
Group has not entered into any material transactions or
significant investment which are classified as notifiable
transactions as defined under Chapter 19 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

For other acquisitions of the Group, please refer to note
34 and note 35(a) to the financial statements.

EXER - NBDESRYBER (490
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BEREEEAXARE
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the Group’s operating transactions, assets and
liabilities are primarily denominated in either Renminbi or
Hong Kong dollar, the Directors believes that Renminbi
will remain relatively stable against Hong Kong dollar in
the forseeable future and considered the Group’s present
exposure to exchange risk is relatively minimal. Currently,
no financial arrangements have been implemented for
hedging purpose. Nevertheless, the Directors will, from
time to time, closely monitor and reassess the exchange
risk exposures of the Group and will enter into non-
speculative hedging arrangements as required.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Segmental information of the Group was disclosed in note
13 to the financial statements.

EMPLOYEES

As a software solution provider, people are our most
valuable assets. Accordingly, the human resources
framework are one of the Group’s critical policies with
utmost strategic importance.

The Group is a “people-oriented” and “equal opportunity”
employer whereas its staff selection and promotion
process will only be determined with reference to
employees’ own merits and their suitability for the positions
offered.

Employee remuneration include basic salaries and benefits-
in-kind such as medical and insurance coverage,
retirement benefits scheme, and other discretionary
incentives etc..

Employee remuneration is maintained at market
competitive level and will be regularly reviewed within the
general framework of the Group’s human resources
system. Reward policy are basically determined by
individual performance as well as financial results of the
Group, Reward adjustment will be made from time to
time when staff performances are warranted.
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EMPLOYEES (Continued)

To recognize the contributions and encouraging initiatives
and commitment of its staff, the Group has also
established a share option scheme. While detailed share
option granting proposals are currently under
consideration, none of the share option has been granted
during the year ended 31st December 2003.

Apart from the said tangible rewards, the Group will, on
an ongoing basis, provides professional development and
trainings to its employees to ensure its workforces always
keep abreast with up-to-date professional knowledge,
competences and sharing the same corporate vision of
the Group.

As at 31st December 2003, the Group employed a total
staff of 161. Staff cost, including directors’ emoluments,
was approximately RMB9.5 million for the year ended 31st
December 2003.

COMPARISON OF USE OF PROCEEDS

There has been no change in principal business objectives
of the Group since the time that the Group’s IPO
Prospectus was prepared. However, as mentioned in the
IPO Prospectus, both the domestic securities and
information technology industries in China are dynamic
and fast-changing, with new policies, regulations, products
and business emerging constantly. In response to the
changing market conditions, the Group has strategically
refined its implementation plan and has taken a more
conservative tact in implementing its business plans than
originally planned and amended and postponed certain
sizeable development projects and strategic deployments
accordingly as it was considered to be in the best interests
of the Group and its shareholders as a whole.

For details in relation to the changes in execution plan,
please refer to the subsection headed “Comparison of
Business Objectives with Actual Business Progress” of
this section.
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COMPARISON OF USE OF PROCEEDS (Continued)

Since the listing of the Group and subject to the
modifications and refinements in implementing its business
plan above-mentioned, the net proceeds raised from the
placing on 12th August 2003 had been applied to achieve
the business objectives as set out in the IPO Prospectus
of the Group and are utilized up to 31st December 2003
as detailed below:

FERBERRLE (&)

REBRZZEZE=FNAT-_HETREEE
RSB F5E (BRER Llst RB BT &EL
RS RAFANERIN) BBIEERASEE
CHRRERANMSBEBEE RS R EMEE
E_TE=F+_A=1+—-HCHHRZ2EES
BHEHNAT:

(expressed in HK$ thousand dollar) (AFEx2E)
Use of
proceeds as Actual amount
stated in utilized up to
the IPO | 31st December 2003
Prospectus BHE-2EZ2=
BRERRSH +=ZA=+-H
FERERE BEBACERSE
Product Developments EmRMER
Enhancing existing product-line RARBEGRR 3,000 570
New products development and BRFERR
subsequent updates BEABAZIRE
Customer Relationship Management/ EFMEER/
Investor Relationship Management REEHRER 3,660 860
Centralized Securities Processing EHEERR S
Platform ra 4,380 -
Integrated investment management FEREEER
and business support solutions EBRTRBAFTR
Including: B
(1) Collaborative Work Platform and 1) BRIEFER
Office Automation NS 2,730 120
(2) Securities Investment Management 2 ZEHRKRE
System BEZER 2,650 1,214
(3) Business and Management @) EeDrER
Platform for Fund Institutions REBFA 2,360 286
(4) Business Support Platform for 4) BHEEH
Securities Industry TE&¥E 1,120 -
Establish Regional Sales Offices and RIMBHERSE
Servicing Centres REFHDL 3,000 -
Brand Building and Marketing REEYRTGEE 3,600 720
26,500 3,770
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AR DA

COMPARISON OF USE OF PROCEEDS (Continued)

Unused net proceeds of approximately HK$21.4 million
have been placed with licenced banks in Hong Kong and
the PRC, and would be applied to achieve objectives as
stated in the IPO Prospectus on a long-term basis.

In the future, to the extent that the net proceeds are not
immediately used, the Group may deposit the same into
financial institutions or engage in highly-liquid, short-term
investments to optimise returns for its shareholders on a
risk-controlled basis.

FEREARBRLER (&)

i R B A B9 BT 15 SRR % ER (4921,400,0005% 7T)
AR ORFREEREANFERT LEAR
ERHARERMEERERRZRE-

AEBREAREKBABSEAZMGEREF
BERRMEHEXBASERAENEHER
BB EES R X BRRIEE.
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COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVESWITH X B EEHSBSREKER LR
ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

Objectives as stated
in the IPO Prospectus
BRER
FEx%ER

Actual business progress

in respect of the year

ended 31st December 2003
BE-_2FT=f+=-A=t+—8H
LEFECERXKER

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENTS AND MARKETING

EmBARRTSER

Existing clearing products

BAE

=+ = ]
%uf‘i—ﬁuu
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Continuous review and perform
market analysis. For selected
products with market potentials,
perform research, testing and
development for new system
features
REBERRIETHERF R
mEOM-HE D AMEENE®D
HEITE— LSRR AARRBERR
BB
Continuous research &

development for customers

BERTPEITHE

Promotion of the E-SIM system
HEETERFGRERTRER

2003

In conformity with its overall
strategic plan of maintaining its
predominance in the securities
clearing product segment, the
Group continued, in stages, to
invest heavily to enhance its
existing “flagship product”, the
security cleaning solution, and
completed the development of
certain new modular client sub-
systems of E-SIM, including
“Bank-Securities Cross-sector
Fund Management Module” and
“C&S Data Backup Module” ahead
of schedule and initiated an early
product delivery.
REGAEERFERES &
EnAEHEAEEE I BBEK K
SEEBEIERRAKREZR T
BIRAZBSEERRARZ [
Emlee REEAREETK [
BRFGAEBRTARIF oI T
RomREIE AP BEIRE
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COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVESWITH XK EBEHEREBERZLE (&)
ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS (Continued)

Objectives as stated
in the IPO Prospectus
BRER
FEXKER

Actual business progress

in respect of the year

ended 31st December 2003
BE-ZEE=Ft+=-A=+t—8
LFECERXBER

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENTS AND MARKETING

EmBARRTSER

Customer Relationship
Management/Investor Relationship
Management (“CRM/IRM”)

EFBARER RAEHRER
(IBEFBGRER REEBEE

)

Introduce and promote the basic
modules of the securities CRM/
IRM
HERHEEIZSFEPBERER
KEEZBRBEB 2 EARER

Completed system development of
certain elementary client sub-
systems of CRM, including “Sales
and Marketing Management
Module”,
Customer Management Module”,

“VIP and Premier
“Intelligential Reporting”,
“Centralized Transaction Risk
Management & Audit”, “Analytical
Module for Decision Support” etc,
which collectively formed the basic
modules of CRM for securities
brokerage business.
TREFHAREEBZETELRR
FFEENRESRRABEIE B
[EHBEAM] [KREPERR
gl [ReemRES]  [hREE
HEZRE] - [9/EERER
BlE P REBK R EEF
TERFBRERASRNTOE
RIES -
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COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVESWITH XK B EZEHEREKERZLLER (&)
ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS (Continued)

Objectives as stated
in the IPO Prospectus
BRER
FEx%ER

Actual business progress

in respect of the year

ended 31st December 2003
BE-_2FT=f+=-A=t+—8H
LEFECERXKER

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENTS AND MARKETING

EmBARRTSER

Integrated
Investment
Management
and business
support

solution ERAEBF
FEKREER 1
R EB T IEE
SR 2
ANNUAL REPORT

Collaborative
Work Platform
Office
Automation

WERIEFAE

and

1. Completion of the skeleton

design of Collaborative Work
Office
Automation framework
TRBRIEFERBELE
B &b 2 R R

Platform and

2. Research & development,
testing and finalization of the
basic modules of the
Collaborative Work Platform
and Office Automation
g% RS R TE R 15 R T AE
ARBAREE L2 ERE
1%

2003

In concert with the marketability
re-assessment in light of changing
market sentiment, the Group
considered the market potential for
this
increasingly

product line became

uncertain and
therefore, cautiously, did not
commited as much financial and
human resources as originally
and is

planned currently

conducting smaller-scaled
development, thus slowing down
the overall commercialization and
development of this Solution.
AEBERETSRAEZE BN
HMUEEAENT S - ENAEERR
Ik 7 fn 3R RS 2 T 35 7 ) L8 T BR
B A AR BT RIEARER
EIRLHMBRANEIR T
BREFTRETRARE 2R
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COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVESWITH XK BEHEREBERZLE (&)
ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS (Continued)

Objectives as stated
in the IPO Prospectus
BRER
&K B &R

Actual business progress

in respect of the year

ended 31st December 2003
BEZ-Z2E=f+=-A=+—H
LFECEREBER

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENTS AND MARKETING

ERMABRRMSEER

Integrated
Investment
Management
and business
support solution
HmAEREER
REBZER
R R

Securities
Investment
Management
System
BHRREER
ES

Business and
Management
Platform for
Fund Institutions
EERAEB
rEEBFES

Research, testing and
development for system features
R AARFAERGY 8

Research & development, testing
and finalization of the basic
modules of the Business and
Management Platform for open-
ended funds by stages

o & B EE OBl Bl R TE AR AR &
CEEBREBTAZEARESR

The Group has accelerated the
research and development of this
project by committing more
financial and human resources on
this product, currently the Group
has completed the pre-research
review and detailed design of this
product during the period under
review. The development of this
project is currently under the
programming stage.
RAEEEFBNZEMRNES
MR ANER MNHRIE B HEE
B-REESHAN NEEE TKE
o i 9% AT EA 3R B Ko 5 AR SR AT T AE
REEARBARRHER

Expedited the system
development for this product line
which is, at the initial stage,
targeting the clearing, custody and
settlement of domestic Open-end
Investment Funds in China. During
the year, the Group has completed
the development of “Clearing,
Custody and Settlement Module”
and “Valuation Module” of this
product series.
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COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVESWITH XK B EZEHEREKERZLLER (&)
ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS (Continued)

Objectives as stated
in the IPO Prospectus
BRER
FEx%ER

Actual business progress

in respect of the year

ended 31st December 2003
BEZE-_2F=f+=-A=t+—H
LEECERXKER

STRATEGIC COOPERATION
RS E

ANNUAL

REPORT

1. Identify and evaluate potential

strategic cooperation
opportunities;
meRFHEERKIESE
e

2. Invest in selected strategic
cooperation opportunities as
well as participate and

consolidate the management

of related projects

REKLBEZRBIUESIER

U2 ERESBERERIZE

BEH

2003

The Group continued to explore
the possibility of strategic
investment which will lead to
synergtic effect to the Group.
However, as of the date of this
report, the Group does not have
any target investment.
FEBEBYDEREREAEETR
MRAMENRBEEREKZ - A
M BEAREAH AEEIWE
EREFEREHR-

As an on-going business
development practise, the Group
has conducted in-depth contacts
and serious discussions with a
wide range of business partners
and world-renowned solution
provider, including Microsoft®
Corporation, for possible strategic
business alliance or cooperation
opportunities.

RHEERER AKETRESZ
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COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVESWITH XK EBEHEREBERZLE (&)
ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS (Continued)

Actual business progress

Objectives as stated in respect of the year

in the IPO Prospectus ended 31st December 2003
BRER BE-ZE=F+t+=-A=+-—H
FEXKER LFECERXBER

ESTABLISH REGIONAL SALES OFFICES AND SERVICING CENTRES
BYBEBHEREEREF H O

1. Identify and evaluate the The Group had planned to explore
setting up of regional sales possible location to set up
offices and service centres in  additional sales offices and
different provinces and cities = servicing centres. However, the
WEkIENRATREMTKY  Group has adopted an increasingly
HEEENREELREFEF L  punctilious attitude towards any

capital investment plans thereof

2. Establish selected regional as, during the year under review,
sales offices and/or service = many nation-wide brokerage firms

centres were under corporate restructuring
RBETHEAIHEFEEP process and postponed their
ZRERSREFF L information technology investment

plan, accordingly, the Group
slowed down its plan to set up
new sales offices and service
centres.
AEEGTEMES B KT
FEHERFRERERLFL-A
f-AAREBEFERME F52
BB REETOESE I
HeEREEMRTENKRER
E-ARRIN AEEHEMRMER
REFERNERBENEE I
REERLTNMEFEERZE
REFPHL-
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EREEEREZ&H

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Gu Yun, age 52, one of the Group’s founders, is the
Chairperson of the Company. Ms. Gu graduated from the
Xiamen University in 1985 majoring in finance in the
Department of Finance and Banking. She joined the Group
in December 1997 and assumes responsibility for strategic
planning and business development of the Group. Before
joining the Group, Ms. Gu worked in the Fujian Branch of
the People’s Bank of China from 1976 to 1992 and had
been a vice general manager in Fujian Securities Trading
Centre. Ms. Gu has good and extensive business
connections and has a broad range of experiences in the
domestic securities and banking industries dating back to
1980s. Ms. Gu is also the compliance officer of the
Company.

Mr. Qiu Yixin, age 44, one of the Group’s founders, is the
vice-chairman of the Company. He is also the chairman
of Shanghai Shine Science and Xinwangluo, the operational
arms of the Group in Shanghai. Mr. Qiu is responsible for
corporate planning and management of the Group’s
operation in Shanghai. He has over 20 years of experience
in technology application and corporate management,
especially in the fields of market planning and information
technology application in securities and banking sectors.
He worked for the Science and Technology Department
of Fujian Branch of the People’s Bank of China from 1989
to 1993 and for Fujian Securities Trading Centre as the
manager of its computer department from 1994 to 1999.
Mr. Qiu graduated in 1983 from the Fujian Broadcasting
Television University, majoring in electronics.

ANNUAL REPORT 2003
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EREEERBEEE&H

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Chen Yunrong, age 40, is the chief executive officer
of the Company. Since joining the Group in February 2002,
Mr. Chen has been responsible for the daily operation
and management of the Group. Before joining the
Company, Mr. Chen worked in the Fujian Branch of the
PBOC from 1984 to 1988 and later became the deputy
president of Minfa Securities Company Limited responsible
for computerization and information technology research
and application. He has over 19 years of experience and
hand-on knowledge of China’s financial and securities
industries, especially in the fields of corporate management
and applications of information technology. Mr. Chen
obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics from Xiamen
University in 1984, and was awarded a master’s degree
in business administration from the Asia International Open
University (Macau) in 2000.

Mr. Ye Jinxing, age 36, is a senior economist. Mr. Ye
joined the Group in October 2000 and has been in charge
of the Group’s overall financial management, strategic
capital planning and treasury functions of the Group. Mr.
Ye previously held various managerial positions at the
Quanzhou City Branch of Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China in Fujian Province from 1990 to 1994 and Minfa
Securities Company Limited from 1994 to 1999. Mr. Ye
has over 13 years of experience and in-depth knowledge
in domestic banking, capital and money markets. Mr. Ye
was awarded a bachelor’s degree in economics from the
Jiangxi College of Finance and Economics in 1990.

HITESE (8)
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EREEEREZ&H

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Ms. Li Xiaoyuan, age 41, is one of the Group’s founders
and a senior engineer. Before joining the Group, Ms. Li
served as deputy general manager for the computer
department of Fujian Securities Trading Centre from 1993
to 1999. Since joining the Group in December 1997, Ms.
Li has assumed responsibility for the Group’s strategic
technological development and project management and
led the Group in successfully developing many marketable
and innovative solutions. Ms. Li obtained a bachelor’s
degree from the Nanjing Communications Engineering
Institute in 1984.

Mr. Jiang Yulai, age 34, is the chief information officer of
the Group. Mr. Jiang formerly worked for the computer
department of Fujian Securities Trading Centre from 1994
to 1998. Mr. Jiang joined the Group in December 1997
and is responsible for the research and development of
the Group’s pilot products. Mr. Jiang has extensive
experiences in procedural and information flows of
domestic securities business as well as in industrial
information technology solution exploitation. He obtained
his bachelor’s degree from computer engineering and
science department of the Tianjin University in 1991.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chen Qun, age 48, formerly worked for the Fujian
Branch of the People’s Bank of China (1985-1990) and is
the general manager of the Computer Centre of Minfa
Securities Company Limited. Mr. Chen has over 15 years’
experience in the corporate management, product
implementation and related technical services for domestic
securities industry. Mr. Chen obtained a master degree in
business administration from the Asia International Open
University (Macau) in 2000. Mr. Chen joined the Board in

August 2002.
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EREEERREZ&H

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Choy Tak Ho, age 75, has over 40 years of experience
in international trading business in Hong Kong. He is the
director of Union International (HK) Company Limited and
also acts as independent non-executive director of 5 main
board-listed companies, namely, Sino Golf Holdings
Limited, Ocean Grand Holdings Limited, Yanion
International Holdings Limited, Oriental Explorer Holdings
Limited and Multifield International Holdings Limited. Mr.
Choy was member of the 8th and 9th National Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultation Conference,
of the Selection Committee of the first Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and is also the
Honourable Life Chairman of the Chinese General Chamber
of Commence H.K. and an executive committee member
of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong.
Mr. Choy joined the Board in September 2002.

Mr. Liu Bo, age 47, is a professor of Shanghai University
of Finance and Economics. He was previously the vice
general manager of Shanghai Stock Exchange and the
chairman of China Southern Securities Co. Ltd. and China
Southern Fund Management Co. Ltd. Mr. Liu is now the
chairman of the Special Committee of the Investment Fund
Industry of the Securities Association of China. Mr. Liu
joined the Board in September 2002.

OTHER SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Duan Jianlin, aged 43, is the business development
controller of the Group. He has been responsible for the
sales and marketing management of the Group since he
joined the Group in September 2003. After his graduation
from the Xian University of Technology in 1982, Mr. Duan
held various senior positions in some domestic securities
institutions responsible for their information technology
functions and has over 20 years of experiences in business
development and information technology business.

BYFHITES
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EREEERBEE&H

OTHER SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. Lin Wei, aged 40, is the Chief Technological Officer of
the Group. Mr. Lin was awarded the Doctor of Philosophy
in Management by the Huazhong University of Science &
Technology. Before joining the Group in August 20083,
Mr. Lin held various key positions in some renowned
information technology companies in PRC.

Mr. Cheng Yun Ming, Matthew, age 34, is the company
secretary, Qualified Accountant and one of the compliance
officers of the Company. He was awarded a Bachelor of
Arts degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University (formerly known as Hong Kong
Polytechnics) in 1992. Mr. Cheng is a certified public
accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. Cheng acted as the group
financial controller and company secretary of China
Everbright Technology Limited. Prior to joining the Group
in November 2002, he was the group financial controller
of a wireless data telecommunication carrier in the PRC.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group (comprising
the Company and its subsidiaries) for the year ended 31st
December 2003.

GROUP REORGANIZATION

The Company was incorporated in Cayman Islands on
15th July 2002 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
Pursuant to a group reorganization (the “Reorganization”)
to rationalize the group structure in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Exchange”), the Company became the
holding company of the Group upon completion of the
Reorganization on 28th July 2003 and, through a
placement of 118,250,000 new shares (the “Placing”) of
the Company, the Company’s shares were initially listed
on GEM on 12th August 2003 (the “Listing”). Further details
of the Reorganization are set out in the Company’s
prospectus dated 4th August 2003 (the “IPO Prospectus”).
The Group resulting from the Reorganization, is regarded
as a continuing entity for accounting purpose.

The financial results of the Group include the results of
the Company and its subsidiaries and have been prepared
using the merger basis of accounting as a result of the
Reorganization. On this basis, the Company had been
treated as the holding company of its subsidiaries since
their respective dates of incorporation. The basis of
preparation for the results is set out in note 1(b) to the
financial statements.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note
17 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December
2003 are set out in the consolidated income statement
on page 58.

The directors of the Company recommend the payment
of a dividend of HK$0.34 cents per share (equivalent to
approximately RMBO0.36 cents per share) for the year.

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in note 30 to the financial
statements respectively.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets of the Group are
set out in note 14(a) to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company who held office during the
year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Ms. Gu Yun
Mr. Qiu Yixin
Mr. Chen Yunrong — Chief Executive Officer

— Chairperson
— Vice chairman

Mr. Ye Jinxing
Ms. Li Xiaoyuan
Mr. Jiang Yulai
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Choy Tak Ho
Mr. Liu Bo

Non-Executive director:
Mr. Chen Qun

In accordance with article 87 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Chen Qun and Ms. Li Xiaoyuan will retire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offers themselves for re-election. All other directors
continue to remain in office.

Biographical information of directors is set out on page
34 to page 38 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive directors, namely Ms. Gu Yun, Mr.
Qiu Yixin, Mr. Chen Yunrong, Mr. Jiang Yulai, Ms. Li
Xiaoyuan and Mr. Ye Jinxing has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of 3 years
commencing from 12th August 2003. Such agreement
may, during the term, be terminated by either party giving
to the other not less than 3 months’ written notice.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or any
company controlled by the directors has a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EETEHRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Saved as disclosed above:

(if)

there was no transaction which need to be
disclosed as connected transactions in accordance
with the requirements of Chapter 20 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”); and

no contract of significance in relation to the Group’s
business subsisted at the year-end or any time
during the year to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or the management shareholders

or any of their respective associates (as defined in the

GEM Listing Rules) of the Company had an interest in a

business which causes or may cause any significant

competition with the business of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND OPTIONS

As at 31st December 2003, the interests or short positions

of the directors and the chief executive of the Company

in the shares and underlying shares (the “Equities”) of the

Company or any of its associated corporations (within the

meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures

Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register required

to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise

notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to
Rules 5.40 to 5.58 of the GEM Listing Rules, were as

follows:

(a) The Company -

interests in Equities

Director No. of Equities
EE KRG EE
Ms. Gu Yun (Note 1) 187,061,635
B Bt (Batr)
Ms. Li Xiaoyuan (Note 2) 187,061,635
FhTRE (BiF2)
Mr. Ye Jinxing (Note 3) 35,839,097
EeHEE (H73)
Mr. Chen Yunrong (Note 4) 31,260,882
BR=REE (Hita)
Mr. Qiu Yixin (Note 5) 28,793,514

Bf— R (K1 aEs)

Notes:

1.

Ms. Gu Yun is a director of and the beneficial
owner of 1,539 Equities in Genesis Century
Limited (“Genesis Century”), representing 15.39%
of the issued share capital of Genesis Century.
Ms. Gu is taken to be interested in the Equities
owned by Genesis Century pursuant to Part XV
of the SFO as Genesis Century is accustomed or
obliged to act in accordance with the directions
or instructions of Ms. Gu, together with Ms. Li
Xiaoyuan.

Nature of Interest

EERFETBRAEBRROKEREZ
BEIAXR

RIBEE=F+_A=+—"HB ARAIZEEN=E
BITRABRARQRASETMEE EZE (TR
BHNEEEG ([

EHRIE D)) EXVED)
21D RABBIARID ([IRA D) - B IR BB 5
T %5 151 55 352 152 38 5 B A KRBT
HERAMAZEHIAR  TREEIZIR -
7.8 55.40%5.581% 2 418 A2 7 B 2 A2 4
HIABMT

(@ F2A7FA— KROER

Percentage of
shareholding

EmME ERESL
Interest of a controlled corporation 39.6%
XEEERER
Interest of a controlled corporation 39.6%
XEEERER
Interest of a controlled corporation 7.6%
XEEERER
Interest of a controlled corporation 6.6%
XEEERER
Interest of a controlled corporation 6.1%
XEEERR
B it
1. & = Z & & Genesis Century Limited
(T Genesis Century] ) Z = R Z A A
1,539 A 2 Bm A A 16 Genesis
CenturyB # 17 IR &K 15.39% > A »
Genesis CenturyE s BIZEB L £ &
FNTHR L BERIERITE WRE
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E"Geness Centuryli B 2 IR AHF A
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND OPTIONS (Continued)

(a) The Company - interests in Equities (Continued)

2. Ms. Li Xiaoyuan is a director of and is the
beneficial owner of 3,784 Equities in Genesis
Century, representing 37.84% of the issued share
capital of Genesis Century. Ms. Li is taken to be
interested in the Equities owned by Genesis
Century pursuant to Part XV of the SFO as she is
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-
third or more of the voting power at the general
meetings of Genesis Century.

3. These Equities are legally owned by Future Pursuit
Ltd. (“Future Pursuit”), whose beneficial owners
are Mr. Ye Jinxing and his mother, Ms. Lian Xiu,
representing 39.79% and 60.21% interest in its
issued share capital respectively. Mr. Ye is taken
to be interested in the Equities owned by Future
Pursuit pursuant to Part XV of the SFO as he is
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-
third or more of the voting power at the general
meetings of Future Pursuit.

4, These Equities are legally owned by Cheer Prosper
Investments Limited (“Cheer Prosper”), the entire
issued share capital of which is held by Mr. Chen
Yunrong. He is taken to be interested in the
Equities held by Cheer Prosper pursuant to Part
XV of the SFO.

5. These Equities are legally owned by Easy Elegance
Ltd. (“Easy Elegance”), the entire issued share
capital of which is held by Mr. Qiu Yixin. He is
taken to be interested in the Equities held by Easy
Elegance pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND OPTIONS (Continued)

HELZE— RoER

(b) Associated corporations - interests in Equities (b)

Percentage of
interests in
the registered

Name of capital of the
associated Nature of associated

Director corporation Interest corporation

L2 B L E
ZMELRZ

- HEEEER EatE ERmEoL

Ms. Gu Yun (Note 2) TEEEEREEERAER AT Family 8.0%

B ZEit (ffaz2) (“Shanghai Xingyishi”) (Note 1) K Ik

(ITEEEE®E]) (Fat1)

Mr. Qiu Yixin Shanghai Xingyishi Personal 4.0%

S — 05 & FEEZE & A

Mr. Chen Yunrong Shanghai Xingyishi Personal 4.0%

BR=#%E FEEZE & A

Mr. Ye Jinxing Shanghai Xingyishi Personal 4.0%

He@EE e E R & A

Mr. Jiang Yulai Shanghai Xingyishi Personal 4.0%

IBEREHE FEEZH & A

Mr. Chen Qun Shanghai Xingyishi Personal 4.0%

bR BESEA FEEEE & A

Notes: Bt -

1. Shanghai Xingyishi is a subsidiary of the Group 1. LBEEBALNEE B AR H
(in which 0% of its equity Equities are owned by BO%RIEMANEBHES 2 T AH
the Group and the remaining interests are owned PRENBEBRECETESHARES
by others, including certain directors or their BHMEATEANNEMALHES-
respective associates as disclosed above).

2. Mr. Xu Zhangxun holds 8% interest in the 2. FEAEARBELSEERFIMER
registered capital of Shanghai Xingyishi. Ms. Gu 8WEm -HMNEBEXL T RATERLEY
Yun, spouse of Mr. Xu Zhangxun, is deemed to BB MURBE S R EROIEXV -
be interested in Shanghai Xingyishi by virtue of BrtwRAEE LSESH 2 ES-
Part XV of SFO.

= z = = F LR £} 45



46

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND OPTIONS (Continued)

Save as disclosed above and that disclosed under the
section headed “Substantial Shareholders and Persons
with Discloseable Interest and Short Position in Equities
and Options under SFO”, as at 31st December 2003,
none of the directors, chief executive of the Group or
their respective associates had any interests or short
positions in the Equities of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Exchange pursuant to the minimum
standard of dealings by directors of the Company as
referred to in Rules 5.40 to 5.58 of the GEM Listing Rules.
During the Period, there was no debt securities issued by
the Group at any time.

ANNUAL REPORT 2003

EERIETBRAERBRORE &
HEHEARE (&)

BREXBEBEERIREZSFRBAEKRIKEBEAT
BEIRBRIABRZEERRERALT] —&HAHE
BENR-ZZEE=F+-_A=+—RH K&H
CEF IETBABSBEESE2HEALTH
BERAQARINEEMAEREZE (ExRES R
BIRFIEXVE) 2RO - HEEEEHAREES
REIEGHIE35216FE 2 Tl & M2 amgok
B MVERIBAIZER LRI 5,408 5.581KF7
MARREFENRINZRBEDHEAERR
7) M B A P 2 AR A RE RS AR R o AN SR B N 48 PA AR
HEANEREBETESES-



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND PERSONS
WITH DISCLOSEABLE INTEREST AND SHORT
POSITION IN SHARES AND OPTIONS UNDER
SFO

As at 31st December 2003, the following persons (other
than a director or chief executive of the Company as
disclosed above) had an interest or short position in the
Shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in Equities

Number of
Name Shares
=F KRG EE
Genesis Century Limited 187,061,635
(“Genesis Century”)
Future Pursuit Limited 35,839,097
(“Future Pursuit”)
Cheer Prosper Investments Limited 31,260,882
(“Cheer Prosper”)
Easy Elegance Limited 28,793,514
(“Easy Elegance”)
Ms. Li Xiaoyuan (Note 1) 187,061,635
TN L (Ma1)
Mr. Zhang Xiaohui (Note 2) 187,061,635
REEIEL A (Ff2)
Ms. Gu Yun (Note 3) 187,061,635
B ZEit (Ka3)
Mr. Xu Zhangxun (Note 4) 187,061,635
AFEASE (Fi4)
Ms. Lian Xiu (Note 5) 35,839,097
@ At (KHas)
Mr. Ye Jinxing (Note 6) 35,839,097
Ee@EE (Mit6)
Ms. Wang Chunling (Note 7) 35,839,097
ITERLZL (Ka7)
Mr. Chen Yunrong (Note 8) 31,260,882
R=mEE (B7F8)
Ms. Guo Lidan (Note 9) 31,260,882
WL +L (K 79)
Mr. Qiu Yixin (Note 10) 28,793,514
B—0% 4% (Ba10)
Ms. Lin Wen (Note 11) 28,793,514

MmoxXtt (BfiE11)

REFSRPERIEREATREZHE
BRABZEERRRAL

RZEZ=F+-_A=+—H T AL (B
REXBRBENARBEEREZTHAEIN R
ARBZBEOT HECHAREBESNHAE K
FIFE3BHETFE B LMz EmHIK R

BREZHR

Percentage of
Nature of Interest shareholding
EzmME FREZHE
Corporate 39.6%
NG
Corporate 7.6%
NS
Corporate 6.6%
NG
Corporate 6.1%
NS
Interest of a controlled corporation 39.6%
REyAEER
Family 39.6%
ENI
Interest of a controlled corporation 39.6%
REyAEER
Family 39.6%
ENI
Interest of a controlled corporation 7.6%
REyAEER
Interest of a controlled corporation 7.6%
XEEERER
Family 7.6%
R Ik
Interest of a controlled corporation 6.6%
XEEERER
Family 6.6%
R Ik
Interest of a controlled corporation 6.1%
XEEERER
Family 6.1%
R Ik

= Z 2 = F F £}
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND PERSONS
WITH DISCLOSEABLE INTEREST AND SHORT
POSITION IN SHARES AND OPTIONS UNDER
SFO (Continued)

Long positions in Equities (Continued)

Notes:

1. Ms. Li Xiaoyuan is the beneficial owner of 3,784 shares
in Genesis Century, representing 37.84% of the issued
share capital of Genesis Century. Ms. Li is taken to be
interested in the Shares owned by Genesis Century
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO as she is entitled to
exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of
the voting power at the general meetings of Genesis
Century.

2. Mr. Zhang Xiaohui, spouse of Ms. Li Xiaoyuan, is deemed
to be interested in these Shares pursuant to Part XV of
the SFO.

3. Ms. Gu Yun is a director of and beneficial owner of 1,539
shares in Genesis Century. She is taken to be interested
in the Shares owned by Genesis Century pursuant to
Part XV of SFO as Genesis Century is accustomed or
obliged to act in accordance with her directions.

4. Mr. Xu Zhangxun, spouse of Ms. Gu Yun, is deemed to
be interested in these Shares pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO.

5. Ms. Lian Xiu, mother of Mr. Ye Jinxing, is interested in
60.21% of the issued share capital of Future Pursuit.
She is taken to be interested in the Shares owned by
Future Pursuit pursuant to Part XV of the SFO as she is
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or
more of the voting power at the general meetings of
Future Pursuit.

6. Mr. Ye Jinxing is interested in 39.79% of the issued share
capital of Future Pursuit. He is taken to be interested in
the Shares owned by Future Pursuit pursuant to Part XV
of the SFO as he is entitled to exercise or control the
exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at the
general meetings of Future Pursuit.

7. Ms. Wang Chunling, spouse of Mr. Ye Jinxing, is deemed
to be interested in these Shares pursuant to Part XV of
the SFO.

8. These Shares are legally owned by Cheer Prosper, the
entire issued share capital of which is held by Mr. Chen
Yunrong.

9. Ms. Guo Lidan, spouse of Mr. Chen Yunrong, is deemed
to be interested in these Shares pursuant to Part XV of
the SFO.

10. These Shares are legally owned by Easy Elegance, the
entire issued share capital of which is held by Mr. Qiu
Yixin.

11. Ms. Lin Wen, spouse of Mr. Qiu Yixin, is deemed to be

interested in these Shares pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND PERSONS
WITH DISCLOSEABLE INTEREST AND SHORT
POSITION IN SHARES AND OPTIONS UNDER
SFO (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been
notified of any person (other than a director or chief
executive of the Company) who had a discloseable interest
or short position in the Shares of the Company as defined
under the SFO and/or were directly or indirectly interested
in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any other members of the Group and
who were able, as a practical matter, to direct or influence
the management of the Group of their rights.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

To enable the Group to grant options to selected
participants as incentives or rewards for their contributions
to the Group, the Company conditionally adopted the
share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”),
pursuant to a written resolution passed by the then
shareholders of the Company on 28th July 2003 (the
“Adoption Date”). The principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme are set out below.

(a) Participants of the Scheme

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, invite
any employee (including directors of the Company),
supplier, customer and any consultant, adviser,
manager, officer or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to any
member of the Group or of any entity in which the
Group holds any equity interest (collectively “Eligible
Person”), to take up options to subscribe for shares
of the Company (the “Shares”).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Maximum number of Shares

Subject to certain other provisions of the Share
Option Scheme as disclosed in the Company’s IPO
Prospectus, the maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate
exceed thirty per cent. (30%) of the total shares of
the Company in issue from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Subject to certain other conditions of the share
option scheme as disclosed in the Company’s IPO
Prospectus, the total number of Shares issued and
which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted under the Share Option Scheme
(including both exercised or outstanding options)
to each Eligible Person in any twelve-month period
must not exceed one per cent. (1%) of the issued
share capital of the Company for the time being.

Time of exercise of option

In respect of option holders other than suppliers
and customers, an option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme at any time during the period commencing
one year from the date of grant of the option and
expiring on the earlier of the last day of a ten-year
period (i) from the date of grant of the option and
(i) the Adoption Date.

In respect of option holders who are suppliers and
customers, such period shall commence on the
date of grant of the option and expire 1 year
thereafter.
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EEEHRG

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Payment on acceptance of option

Upon application or acceptance of the option, the
grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company as
consideration for the grant.

Subscription price for shares

The subscription price (“Subscription Price”) for
each Share under the Share Option Scheme shall
be a price determined by the Board, but shall not
be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations on the date of grant
of that option, which must be a business day; (i)
the average closing price of shares of the Company
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant of that option; and (iii) the nominal
value of the share of the Company, being HK$0.01
per share.

Period of the Share Option Scheme
The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a

period of ten years commencing from the Adoption
Date.

Other principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set

out in the IPO Prospectus of the Company.

Up to the date of this report, no option has been granted

by the Company pursuant to such Share Option Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S RIGHTS
TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share option schemes disclosed above, at
no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors and chief executive of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate,
and none of the directors, or their spouses or children
under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such
right.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year under review, the top five customers of the
Group together accounted for approximately 18.6% of
the Group’s total sales for the year while the single largest
customers accounted for approximately 6.5% of the
Group’s total sales during the year.

Whereas external purchase, mainly arising from its
hardware resale operations, only accounted for less 30% of
the Group’s cost of sales during the year, the top five
suppliers of the Group for the year under review together
accounted for approximately 75.3% of the Group’s total
purchases for the year and the single largest supplier
accounted for approximately 52.1% of the Group’s total
purchases.

None of the directors, their respective associates or any
shareholders of the Company who owns more than 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company has any interests
in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers above-
mentioned.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities
as at 31st December 2003
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Particular of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group
are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

OPTIONS,

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities,
options, warrants or instruments carrying other similar
rights as at 31st December 2003.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s articles of association, or the laws of Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES

During the year ended 31st December 2003, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed Shares.

SPONSOR’S INTEREST

Pursuant to a sponsor agreement dated 4th August 2003
entered into between the Company and South China
Capital Limited (the “Sponsor”), the Sponsor has been
appointed as the retained sponsor of the Company for
the period from 12th August 2003 to 31st December 2005
(or until the sponsor agreement is otherwise terminated
upon the terms and conditions contained therein), for
which the Sponsor will receive a fee.
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SPONSOR’S INTEREST (Continued)

As notified and updated by the Sponsor, neither the
Sponsor nor any of its directors or employees or
associates (as referred to in Note 3 to Rule 6.35 of the
GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in any class of
securities of the Company or any member of the Group,
or any right to subscribe for or to nominate persons to
subscribe for the securities of the Company or any member
of the Group as at 31st December 2003.

Save as disclosed above, the Sponsor had no other
interest in the Company as at 31st December 20083.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Rules 5.23 and
5.24 of GEM Listing Rules on 28th July 2003. The primary
duties of the audit committee are, among others, to review
and oversee the financial reporting principles and practices
adopted as well as internal control procedures and issues
of the Group. It also reviews quarterly, interim and the
final results of the Group prior to recommending the same
to the Board for consideration.

The audit committee, comprising of the two independent
non-executive directors of the Company, include members

as follows:
Name
"L
Mr. Choy Tak Ho  Z:{E5W L &
Mr. Liu Bo 2 LA
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

Since the Listing of the Company on 12th August 2003,
the audit committee has held two meetings and the
Company’s draft unaudited quarterly report and audited
financial statements have been reviewed and commented
by the audit committee members.

BOARD PRACTICE AND PROCEDURES

The Company has complied with the Board Practices and
Procedures as set out in Rules 5.28 to 5.39 of the GEM
Listing Rules since the Listing.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs.
Charles Chan, Ip & Fung CPA Limited who retire and,

being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By order of the Board

Gu Yun
Chairperson

23rd March 2004
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

2B B RS

Charles Chan, Ip & Fung CPA Ltd.
37th Floor, Hennessy Centre
500 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SHINE SCIENCE & TECHNOLOGY (HOLDINGS)

LIMITED
(INCORPORATED IN CAYMAN ISLANDS WITH LIMITED
LIABILITY)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 58 to
134 which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDITORS

The Company’s directors are responsible for the
preparation of financial statements which give a true and
view. In preparing financial statements which give a true
and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion,
based on our audit, on those financial statements and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

*

for identification purpose only
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

7

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements
of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society
of Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test
basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment
of the significant estimates and judgements made by the
directors in the preparation of the financial statements,
and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the Company’s and the Group’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all
the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence
to give reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. In forming
our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of information in the financial statements.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31st December 2003 and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Charles Chan, Ip & Fung CPA Ltd.
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23rd March 2004

Chan Wai Dune, Charles
Practising Certificate Number P00712
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mE W s R

For the year ended 31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi) HE-—TT=FF+-F=+—HIFE (UARKZIE)
2003 2002
—EBC=F —ET_F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
i & ARETT ARBTFT
(Restated)
(EZl)
Turnover =20 4&13 16,287 39,904
Cost of sales $H & P AR (7,063) (16,998)
Gross profit EH 9,224 22,906
Other revenue H fib U 75 5 2,353 2,609
Other net income H U A58 5 190 446
Distribution costs 2 K A (3,391) (3,043)
General and administrative expenses — — #& & 77 BB X (8,235) (7,093)
Profit from ordinary BB EE
activities before taxation EBER 6 141 15,825
Income tax Frig#t 7(a) 238 (1,180)
Profit from ordinary BRE#ZBAE
activities after taxation EKER 379 14,645
Minority interests DR RS 329 (1,480)
Profit attributable to shareholders B 5 F& {5 2% 10 & 30(a) 708 13,165
Dividends attributable to the year: FRARE: 11(a)
Interim dividend declared FHNEEIK
during the year H B B - 7,000
Final dividend proposed “H BB
after the balance sheet date REFAR B 1,703 =
1,703 7,000
RMB (cents) RMB (cents)
AR (7) AR (5)
Earnings per share BRAEF 12(a)
Basic H AR 0.18 3.71

The notes on pages 64 to 134 form part of these financial HF64E1348 AR PHBRERE R H -
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

mEEERMER

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

R-ZFEF=ZF+-A=+—H (ULAR%/E)

2003 2002
—EBE=HF —ZEE=
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 3 AR¥ T AR TFr
(Restated)
(E%l)
Non-current assets ERBEE
Fixed assets E B E 14(a) 4,018 3,856
Intangible assets mEEE 15 8,797 4,105
Goodwill EES 16 (597) =
Deferred tax assets BEEMIBE E 28(a) 563 140
12,781 8,101
Current assets REBEE
Investments "E 18 163 105
Inventories FE 19 76 151
Trade and other receivables JiE U BR R
H th JE W FRIR 20 2,066 13,549
Tax recoverable A Ug [B] 7 18 21 986 500
Fixed deposits T H1F 5K 22 12,000 =
Cash and cash equivalents BehkReFEEY 23 28,205 18,744
43,496 33,049
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables JE - BR B %
H b B FRIB 24 4,537 15,533
Deferred income 5 T Y A 25 779 526
Income tax payable FE B PRS0 26 161 794
Convertible notes A 2 % E i 27 - 14,840
5,477 31,693
Net current assets REBEEFE 38,019 1,356
Total assets less current liabilities #BEERATES 50,800 9,457
Non-current liabilities rEFRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BELEHIBBAEE 28(a) (1,320) 615)
Minority interests DEBRRES (488) (2,103)
NET ASSETS EEFE 48,992 6,739
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXK#E
Share capital [N 29 5,014 8
Reserves k] 30 43,978 6,731

48,992 6,739

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on ZFER _ZTNF=_A -+ =—HHIERE
23th March 2004. RETI) 8%

Gu Yun B = Chen Yunrong [RB&R=
Director = Director EE

The notes on pages 64 to 134 form part of these financial FE4E134E 7 Wit EHREREF I D
statements.



BALANCE SHEET

EER B X

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

R-ZFEF=ZF+-A=+—H (ULAR%/E)

2003
—%R=F
Note RMB’000
B = AR¥® T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Fixed assets EAE 14(b) 176
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR 2 RE 17 19
195
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables JFE Ui BR TR N E b JE UR FRIE 20 29,144
Cash and cash equivalents ReFReEED 23 10,501
39,645
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables FE A BR R I E b FE S SR IB 24 450
Net current assets REBEEFE 39,195
NET ASSETS EEFE 39,390
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXK#E
Share capital f& 7 29 5,014
Reserves (ER] 30 34,376
39,390

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on ZFER _ZTTNF=_A -+ =B ERE

23rd March 2004. T3 o
Gu Yun B = Chen Yunrong [RB&R=
Director 2 Director -

The notes on pages 64 to 134 form part of these financial FE4E134E 7 Wit FEHREREF I D
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

s e RS

For the year ended 31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

# B &

=z

ZEE=FF A=+ —HIFE (UARKIIE)

2003 2002
—BBC=F —ET -
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M & ARETFT ARKTIT
(Restated)
(E31)
Shareholders’ equity at 1st January R—A—HBZRERES
— as previously reported — QAR 2 ¥ 7,209 18,301
— prior period adjustment in —RERIEZ
respect of deferred tax A 8§ & 3 & 30 (470) 105
- as restated — &7 673899 18,406
Reserve arising from the SEEAFMELRFEE
group reorganisation )y (2,340)
Net profit for the year REE 7
- as previously reported — QA %% B B BB 5 13,740
— prior period adjustment —BMELEHIBEL 2
in respect of deferred tax BEHARAR 3 (575)
- as restated —EHZ27 s 708 13,165
Dividends in respect of the current FRARAFEEETIR
year declared or approved during it 2 BB
the year e - (7,000)
Dividends in respect of the year FRARBE-_ZTZT—F
ended 31st December 2001 +=ZRAR=+—H1
declared or approved during FEEEIRFHE
the year 2R E 1) - (3,000)
Movements in shareholders’ equity HERBEETERAZS
arising from capital transactions EE£ZRRE
with shareholders: EoEH: 29 & 30
Capital elimination on combination & BHER B B (8) (12,500)
Shares issued upon incorporation F 0 B S B B AT AR (D 11 8
Shares issued under the BEEEEA
group reorganisation BATRH 8 -
Shares issued under the conversion EMA MR ERE
of convertible notes into shares A% 19 T 2 47 IR 1n 5 =
Shares issued under the placing BB E BT R0 1,253 -
Net share premium received B URE R 0 ' (B F B8 40,287 =
________ 41,556 ... (12,492)
Shareholders’ equity ®R+=-—B=+—H
at 31st December ZERER 48,992 6,739
The notes on pages 64 to 134 form part of these financial FE4E134E 7 Wit EHREREF I D

statements.



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

an\ l:l IE: % /Jlb E 'IEE

Operating activities
Profit from ordinary activities before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Provision for bad and doubtful debts
Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation of goodwill
Interest income
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Net realised and unrealised gains on
listed equities securities carried at
market value
Net realised and unrealised gains on

unlisted equity securities carried at fair value

Gain on partial disposal of a subsidiary

Operating profit before changes in
working capital

Decrease in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in debtors,
deposits and prepayments
Decrease in creditors
and accrued charges
Increase in deferred income
(Decrease)/increase in other tax payable

Cash generated from operations

Tax paid
PRC enterprise income tax paid
PRC enterprise income tax refunded

Net cash from operating activities

Investing activities
Payment for purchase of fixed assets
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Expenditure on development projects
Payment for purchase of trading securities
Proceeds from sale of trading securities
Payment for purchase of partial interest

in a subsidiary, net of cash acquired

Increase in deposits with banks maturing after

three months from the date of the deposits
Proceeds from sale of partial interest

in a subsidiary
Payment to previous shareholders of

a subsidiary in accordance

with the group reorganisation
Decrease in advances to related companies
Decrease in other receivables
Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

ANNUAL REPORT

For the year ended 31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE—FTT=F+_A=+—HIFE (UARKZE)

2003
“EZ=f
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR
A E
BRHEA B R E 5 A 141
RIS ERE:
nE 1,251
REERE 213
BYEESH 536
i (32)
FlE WA (94)
HEBRTEELHE 117
ITRAEEZEERR
5’5 """"" fﬁ A ﬂ b 1%
(R ATETIER) (140)
FETRAFESRZEERR
AEBBFFE
(AREEFER) -
HE—FEHERF
BrER BT -
RTEEES
FHAZKERA 1,992
BERLY 75
RN Re REM
FERD /(M) 10,698
ERERRESER
) (3,450)
AN 253
HeEHHE CRD) /Em  (1,041)
RELREEZRS 8,527
B&HE
EHHBECEREH (113)
ROFPEMERER -
REERELECHETFE 8,414
RETH
BEETEECTER (2,249)
ﬁﬁlméﬁﬁﬁﬁ 222
FEEARYE (4,731)
BEBERSZHE (102)
HEBEEFMBNE 184
BE-HNBLAHD
BRZRE
(NBEMEARS) (657)
AERBHE=MA%
AWz ROFER i'ﬁu (12,000)
HE—RKBA
o Wﬁﬁ -
BEEEEA
i\ — [ K B A A A
BRMAR -
BYEHERRZTERD -
H i U R ZOR D -
B 8 180
REZHHAREFE (19,153)

2003

2002
—EE-&

RMB’000

RMB’000
ARBTL ARETT

15,825

1,117
135
312

(%é

(187)

(48)

16,845
170

(10,337)

(909)
20
901

6,690

213
6,899

(2,805)
342

(3,919)
(46)

3,545

253

(14,840)
2,000
1,450

254

(13,766)



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

mMERERE R

For the year ended 31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi) HE—TLE=FF+-F=+—HIFE (MLARKS3IE)

2003 2002
—ER=F —2E_F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
it &t ARETn AREFR ARETT ARETR
Financing activities MEED
Proceeds from issue of BITARBRERASHE
convertible notes - 14,840
Net proceeds from shares issued ~ BREBEEEZTRH 2
under the placing FSsIEFE 26,705 =
Proceeds from issue of shares of &£ B EH A —HH B A &)
a subsidiary before the group BORMAERE
reorganisation - 8
Proceeds from injection of capital 4 B T A B 2 7)
of subsidiaries by minority GIRCE
shareholders - 200
Dividend paid to minority interest A ) Bk BUK 5 % S, (505) =
Dividend paid 2R E (6,000) (4,000)
Net cash used in financing METHHAZESFE
activities 20,200 11,048
Net increase in cash and ReRBEEEY
cash equivalents BinFE 9,461 4,181
Cash and cash equivalents = Rl = B K
at 1st January LESEEN 18,744 14,563
Cash and cash equivalents R+=A=t-Hz
at 31st December AeRALSEY 23

The notes on pages 64 to 134 form part of these financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

1. GROUP REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a)

ANNUAL

Reorganisation

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 15th July 2002 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The Company became the holding company
of the Group on 17th June 2003 through a group
reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) to rationalise the
Group’s structure in preparation for the public listing
of the Company’s shares on the Growth Enterprise
Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company
acquired by share exchange the entire share capital of
Shine Science & Technology (BVI) Limited (“Shine
Science BVI”), the then holding company of the
subsidiaries included in the Reorganisation, and hereby
became the holding company of the companies now
comprising the Group.

Further details of the Reorganisation are set out in the
prospectus dated 4th August 2003 issued by the
Company and the details of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the Reorganisation are set out in note 17
to the financial statements. The shares of the Company
were listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange with
effect from 12th August 2003.

REPORT 2003
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

1. GROUP REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

Basis of presentation of financial statements

On 17th June 2003, the Company became the holding
company for the other companies comprising the
Group pursuant to the Reorganisation involving
companies under common control. The Company and
it subsidiaries resulting from the Reorganisation have
been regarded as a continuing group. Accordingly, the
Reorganisation has been accounted for on the basis
of merger accounting, under which the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared as if the
Company had been the holding company of the other
companies comprising the Group throughout the year
ended 31st December 2003, rather than from the date
on which the Reorganisation was completed, except
for any acquisitions or disposals subsequent to the
Reorganisation which are accounted for under the
acquisition basis of accounting. The comparative
figures as at and for the year ended 31st December
2002 have been presented on the same basis.

The Company was incorporated on 15th July 2002.
During the year ended 31st December 2002, the
Company had not carried out any business and
accordingly, no comparative figures is presented in
respect of the Company’s balance sheet at 31st
December 2002.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is historical cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

ANNUAL

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Statements (which includes all applicable
Statements of Standard Accounting Practice and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of
the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an enterprise in which the Company,
directly or indirectly, holds more than half of the issued
share capital, or controls more than half of the voting
power, or controls the composition of the board of
directors. Subsidiaries are considered to be controlled
if the Company has the power, directly or indirectly, to
govern the financial and operating policies, so as to
obtain benefits from their activities.

REPORT 2003
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements, unless it is acquired
and held exclusively with a view to subsequent disposal
in the near future or operates under severe long-term
restrictions which significantly impair its ability to
transfer funds to the Group, in which case, it is stated
in the consolidated balance sheet at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated
income statement as they arise.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions,
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

Minority interests at the balance sheet date, being the
portion of the net assets of subsidiaries attributable to
equity interests that are not owned by the Company,
whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, are
presented in the consolidated balance sheet separately
from liabilities and the shareholders’ equity. Minority
interests in the results of the Group for the year are
also separately presented in the consolidated income
statement.

R-BE=Ff+—_A=+—H (UAR¥3IE)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

ANNUAL

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Where losses attributable to the minority exceed the
minority interest in the net assets of a subsidiary, the
excess, and any further losses attributable to the
minority, are charged against the Group’s interest
except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation to, and is able to, make good the losses. All
subsequent profits of the subsidiary are allocated to
the Group until the minority’s share of losses previously

absorbed by the Group has been recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less any impairment losses
(see note 2(g)), unless it is acquired and held exclusively
with a view to subsequent disposal in the near future
or operates under severe long-term restrictions which
significantly impair its ability to transfer funds to the
Company, in which case, it is stated at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the income
statement as they arise.

REPORT 2003
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Goodwill

Positive goodwill arising on consolidation represents
the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the
Group’s share of the fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities acquired. Positive goodwill is amortised
to the consolidated income statement on a straight-
line basis over its estimated useful life. Positive goodwill
is stated in the consolidated balance sheet at cost
less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment
losses (see note 2(g).

Negative goodwill arising on acquisitions of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the Group’s share of the fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired
over the cost of the acquisition. Negative goodwill is
accounted for to the extent that negative goodwill
relates to an expectation of future losses and expenses
that are identified in the plan of acquisition and can be
measured reliably, but which have not yet been
recognised, it is recognised in the consolidated income
statement when the future losses and expenses are
recognised. Any remaining negative goodwill, but not
exceeding the fair values of the non-monetary assets
acquired, is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the weighted average useful life of those
non-monetary assets that are depreciable/amortisable.
Negative goodwill in excess of the fair values of the
non-monetary assets acquired is recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

ANNUAL

Goodwill (Continued)

In respect of any negative goodwill not yet recognised
in the consolidated income statement, such negative
goodwill is shown in the consolidated balance sheet
as a deduction from asset in the same balance sheet
classification as positive goodwill.

On disposal of a subsidiary during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill not
previously amortised through the consolidated income
statement is included in the calculation of the profit or
loss on disposal.

Investments

Investments represent investments in securities.
Securities are presented as trading securities when
they were acquired principally for the purpose of
generating a profit from short term fluctuations in price.
Trading securities are stated in the balance sheet at
fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in the
income statement as they arise.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(g)).
Major expenditures on modifications and betterments
of fixed assets which will result in future economic
benefits are capitalised, while expenditures on
maintenance and repairs of fixed assets are expensed
when incurred. Depreciation is calculated to write off
the cost less residual value of fixed assets on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as
follows:
Land and buildings Over the remaining
term of the lease
Leasehold improvements Over the remaining

term of the lease

Computer equipment 3-5 years
Furniture and equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5-8 years

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of a fixed asset are determined as the difference
between the estimated net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in
the income statement on the date of retirement or

disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

(i)

ANNUAL

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken
with the prospect of gaining new scientific or
technical knowledge and understanding, is
recognised as an expense in the period in which
it is incurred. Expenditure on development
activities is capitalised if its recoverability can
be foreseen with reasonable assurance and the
following criteria are complied with:

— the cost attributable to the product or
process can be separately identified and

measured reliably;

— the technical feasibility of the product or

process can be demonstrated;

- there is an intention to produce and
market, or use, the product or process;

- the ability to produce or use the product
and process can be demonstrated;

- the existence of a market for the product
or process or, if it is to be used internally
rather than sold, its usefulness, can be
demonstrated; and

- adequate resources exist, or their
availability can be demonstrated, to
complete the project and market or use
the product or process.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

(i)

The expenditure capitalised includes the cost
of materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Capitalised
development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
(see note 2(g)). Other development expenditure
is recognised as an expense in the period in

which it is incurred.

Amortisation of capitalised development costs
is charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the underlying products of not exceeding five
years, commencing from the date when the

products are put into commercial production.

Subsequent expenditure on an intangible asset
after its purchase or its completion is recognised
as an expense when it is incurred unless it is
probable that this expenditure will enable the
asset to generate future economic benefits in
excess of its originally assessed standard of
performance and this expenditure can be
measured and attributed to the asset reliably. If
these conditions are met, the subsequent
expenditure is added to the cost of the
intangible asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi) RZFEE=FF+-_A=+—H(UARKZIE)

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. FEESHEE#H)

(99 Impairment of assets (99 EERE
Internal and external sources of information are REFERABEZARBRINEE
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify BRE LEETINEERSD
indications that the following assets may be impaired IR (B Bk Sk AT i SR 2 RS
or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer BREATHBHEERELRD:

exists or may have decreased:

= fixed assets; = B E & E:

= investment in subsidiaries; = REB AR ZIRE:

= intangible assets; and = ERVEE Rk

= positive goodwill. = FRgE-

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable W fF EE M ZER R BIME T

amount is estimated. For intangible assets that are BE2TKRESE - WEFLE

not yet available for use, or are amortised over more EMRAERANEERAHRE

than 20 years from the date when the asset is available A B B EH R R B 205 M # 8

for use or goodwill that is amortised over 20 years HEEBYXERERER20

from initial recognition, the recoverable amount is FANEE RNSEERMET

estimated at each balance sheet date. An impairment A el —IBEEZK

loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of EEBEEA Y E S5 AR

an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. BEEEETER-

(i) Calculation of recoverable amount (i) AT E AT b & &8
The recoverable amount of an asset is the BEZAKESEE
greater of its net selling price and value in use. FHEBREREAZ
In assessing value in use, the estimated future EmE - EHEEMAE
cash flows are discounted to their present value B A BEERESR
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current ERRMEBTISZES
market assessments of time value of money and ERNEEREEFER
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset % P RT il 2 BR 0 Al 4T 3R
does not generate cash inflows largely EEEEBEE W —
independent of those from other assets, the BEEFEEZRE M
recoverable amount is determined for the ATERKEE LW HEBE
smallest group of assets that generates cash VREMEEMRMELEZ
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating REeEmA BRI BILE
unit). EBRERMAZRNBD

BE(BBEESELET)
EE e & 5o

ANNUAL REPORT 2003



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is reversed only if the loss
was caused by a specific external event of an
exceptional nature that is not expected to recur,
and the increase in recoverable amount relates
clearly to the reversal of the effect of that
specific event.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to the income
statement in the year in which the reversals are

recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

ANNUAL

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period
in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value
and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the write-down or loss
occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down
of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable
value, is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

)

Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of charges in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the

purpose of the cash flow statement.

Employee benefits

(i) Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
leave passage and the cost of the Group of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are rendered
by employees of the Group. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their

present values.

(if) Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as
required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and a
mandatory central pension scheme organised
by the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)
government are recognised as an expense in
the income statement as incurred, except to
the extent that they are included in the cost of
intangible assets and inventories not yet

recognised as an expense.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Income tax

(i)

(i)

ANNUAL

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the
income statement except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised directly in equity, in

which case they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is expected tax payable on taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of

previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax

losses and unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Income tax (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets
to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which
the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will
arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credit, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxable authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Income tax (Continued)

(i)

ANNUAL

(Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, negative goodwill treated as
deferred income, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries
to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the

future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient

taxable profit will be available.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi) RZFEE=FF+-_A=+—H(UARKZIE)

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. FEESHEE#H)

(k) Income tax (Continued) (k) FTB® (&)

(iv)  Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, vy BEBEGSRRELTR
and movements therein, are presented HEGMEESE 958
separately from each other and are not offset. MEINRTE T UK
Current tax assets are offset against current He M REBRAA A
tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against HAREEBETHT
deferred tax liabilities if, and only if, the A RHERAERIEAE
Company or the Group has the legally ERBEEHEBERE
enforceable right to set off current tax assets BX DA T B8 S R 1R B - Al
against current tax liabilities and the following REMEEEBEER
additional conditions are met: EMBEEE RIRED

HEEREERELHIE
BfE:
= in the case of current tax assets and = M ABRAEHIEBEE
liabilities, the Company or the Group ERBE KA
intends either to settle on a net basis, or 3 7N 5 B R 1 40
to realise the asset and settle the liability A 2 4 B[R
simultaneously; or REREERS
BaE %
= in the case of deferred tax assets and = fir) AR E T IE &
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi) RZFEE=FF+-_A=+—H(UARKZIE)

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. FEESHEE#H)

(k) Income tax (Continued) (k) FTB® (&)
(iv)  (Continued) (iv) (#&)

- different taxable entities, which, in = A & FE
each future period in which MER-E
significant amounts of deferred tax L & A At
liabilities or assets are expected £l 7 78 8
to be settled or recovered, intend BRBIE
to realise the current tax assets EHIE A
and settle the current tax liabilities BEREEF
on a net basis or realise and settle 18 3t IR &
simultaneously. MIEEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

o

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Company or Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to settle

the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when the outcome of a

transaction can be measured reliably and when it is

probable that the economic benefits associated with

the transaction will flow to the Group. Revenue is

recognised in the income statement as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

ANNUAL

Sales of software and hardware

Revenue is recognised when the Group has
transferred to the customer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods.
Revenue excludes value added and business
taxes and is stated after deduction of any goods

returns and trade discounts.

Network construction services

Revenue from network construction services is
recognised when the installation work is
completed and the customer has accepted the
goods and services together with significant
risks and rewards of ownership.

Income from provision of maintenance and other

services

Revenue from maintenance and other services
is recognised at the time when the service is

performed.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time-
apportioned basis by reference to the principal

outstanding and at the rate applicable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(v) Value added tax refunds

Value added tax refunds is recognised when
the acknowledgement of refunds from the Tax
Bureau has been received.

Warranty costs

Warranty costs are charged to the income statement

when incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged
to the income statement in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the balance sheet
initially as deferred income when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as revenue in the income
statement on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are
recognised in the income statement as revenue on a
systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

ANNUAL

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into Renminbi at the exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into
Renminbi at the exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date.

Exchange gains and losses are dealt with in the income
statement.

The results of foreign enterprises are translated into
Renminbi at the average exchange rates for the year;
balance sheet items are translated into Renminbi at
the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.
The resulting exchange differences are dealt with as a

movement in reserves.

On disposal of a foreign enterprise, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences which relate to
that foreign enterprise is included in the calculation of

the profit or loss on disposal.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties
are considered to be related to the Group if the Group
has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party
or exercise significant influence over the party in making
financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or
where the Group and the party are subject to common
control or common significant influence. Related parties
may be individuals or other entities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group
that is engaged either in providing products or services
(business segment), or in providing products or services
within a particular economic environment (geographical
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that
are different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting system, the Group has chosen business
segment information as the primary reporting format
and geographical segment information as the
secondary reporting format for the purposes of these
financial statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment
as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable
basis to that segment. For example, segment assets
may include inventories, trade receivables and fixed
assets. Segment revenue, expenses, assets, and
liabilities are determined before intra-group balances
and intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of
the consolidation process, except to the extent that
such intra-group balances and transactions are

between group enterprises within a single segment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire segment assets (both
tangible and intangible) that are expected to be used
for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings,
corporate and financing expenses and minority

interests.

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

SSAP12 (Revised) “Income taxes”

In prior years, deferred tax liabilities were provided using the
liability method in respect of the taxation effect arising from
all material timing differences between the accounting and
tax treatment of income and expenditure, which were
expected with reasonable probability to crystallise in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets were not recognised
unless their realisation was assured beyond reasonable doubt.
With effect from 1st January 2003, in order to comply with
Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 12 (revised) issued
by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants, the Group adopted
a new policy for deferred tax as set out in note 2(k). As a
result of the adoption of this accounting policy, the Group’s
profit for the year has been decreased by approximately
RMB335,000 (2002: RMB575,000) and the net assets as at
the year end have been decreased by approximately
RMB821,000 (2002: RMB470,000).

The new accounting policy has been adopted retrospectively,
with the opening balances of retained profits and reserves
and the comparative information adjusted for the amounts
relating to prior periods as disclosed in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

R-BE=Ff+—_A=+—H (UAR¥3IE)

EXE

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

4. TURNOVER 4.

ARABBREERAR -AEE 2T
BEBREMREME EHEE R

resale of hardware, provision of system integration and HRGEX RS RS -

The Company is an investment holding company, The principal

activities of the Group are development of computer software,

maintenance.

LERBRRATEPREMHER IR ZH
EE ETREREBENREEN AR
HBRERMEERBESITMEIIR-F
NAERZ FBEERKREERIWT:

Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied and
services provided to customers, which excludes value-added
and business taxes and is stated after deduction of any goods
returns and trade discounts. The amount of each significant

category of revenue recognised in turnover during the year is

as follows:

2003 2002
—EE=F —EE—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR Tor
Sales of software A& 10,016 18,001
Sales of hardware WHHE 2,795 9,819
Network construction services fees PR IERGEKRE 197 9,417
Maintenance and other services fees #wiE R EMRKWKE 3,279 2,667
16,287 39,004

= z = = F £}



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME

Other revenue

Interest income
Value-added tax refunds
Government grant received

Dividend income from listed securities

Others

Other net income

Net realised and unrealised gains on
listed equity securities carried at
market value

Net realised and unrealised gains
on unlisted equity securities
carried at fair value

Gain on partial disposal of a subsidiary

Write-off of long outstanding creditors

Net exchange gain
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

6.

PROFIT FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE 6.

TAXATION

Profit from ordinary activities before taxation is arrived at

after charging/(crediting):

(a) Staff costs

Contributions to defined

contribution plans

Salaries, wages and other benefits

Total staff costs #

Less: Amount capitalised as
development costs

(a)

R-BE=Ff+—_A=+—H (UAR¥3IE)

THEE:

HF4£ - IER
H g F

488 T A #

W EARE 2
DN

2003
—%R=F

RMB’000
ARETT

635

8,891

9,526

(3,550)

5,976

BRBi AT B % E 58 A

BBl B EEBEMNE MR (GEA)

2002
—FE-F
RMB’000
AR TFr

520

7,839

8,359

(3,550)

4,809



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %% WOk M A

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

6.

PROFIT FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE 6.
TAXATION (Continued)

Profit from ordinary activities before taxation is arrived at

after charging/(crediting):

(b)

ANNUAL

Other items

Cost of inventories sold and
services rendered #
Amortisation of intangible assets

Amortisation of negative goodwill

Auditors’ remuneration
— provision for the year

— over-provision in prior years

Depreciation #
Less: Amount capitalised as
development costs

Operating lease charges in respect of
land and buildings

Provision for bad and doubtful debts

Bad debt written off

Loss on disposal of fixed assets

(b)

HbE B

ErTFERREH
R 75 2 B A #

BEREESEN

BREBBH

2 Gl
—FREE
—BEFE

ik CRci g

TEH
BN b2
B B B AR

T REFZ
REHENER

HEBEEEE
ZIER

Cost of inventories sold and services rendered includes staff
costs of approximately RMB2,226,000 (2002: RMB1,538,000)
and depreciation expenses of approximately RMB225,000
(2002: RMB111,000) that have also been included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately above for each

of these types of expenses.
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2003 2002
—g®= —TT-

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARETFT

7,063 16,998

536 312

(32) =

281 280

(265) -

16 280

1,748 1,615

(497) (498)

1,251 1,117

935 935

213 135

246 -

117 2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi) RZFEE=FF+-_A=+—H(UARKZIE)
7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 7. #HAWBRZAEBH
STATEMENT
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (@) #HEeEWBZRZBEIE:
represents:
2003 2002
—EBC=F —EET_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARETFT
Current tax - Provision for BEBE-FELE
PRC enterprise income tax FEBEE
Tax for the year KEFEHIA - 799
Over-provision in BAEFEHE
respect of prior years B (520) (214)
(520) 585
Deferred tax iR FIE T 18
Origination and reversal of B R = BB 2R R R & 5
temporary differences 282 595
(238) 1,180
= =z =z = F w



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

7.  INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (Continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents: (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

ANNUAL

Hong Kong profits tax

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Group did not derive any income subject to
Hong Kong profits tax for the years ended 31st
December 2003 and 2002.

PRC enterprise income tax

Fujian Shine Science Company Limited (“Fujian Shine
Science”), which is a subsidiary of the Company and
obtained a certificate of “Hi-Tech Enterprise” on 21st
June 1999, is subject to PRC enterprise income tax
at a preferential rate of 15% and is exempted from
PRC enterprise income tax for the two years starting
from its first profit-making year, and is entitled to a
50% relief on PRC enterprise income tax for the
subsequent three years.

Fujian Shine Science became profitable after offsetting
prior years’ losses in the year ended 31st December
1999 and accordingly, was exempted from PRC
enterprise income tax for the years ended 31st
December 1999 and 2000 and was subject to PRC
enterprise income tax at a rate of 7.5% for the years
ended 31st December 2001 and 2002. On 26th
February 2003, PRC tax authority approved that,
pursuant to the relevant Income Tax Law of the PRC
for Foreign Investment Enterprise, Fujian Shine
Science is further exempted form PRC enterprise
income tax for the two years starting from its first
profit-making year after Fujian Shine Science became
a wholly foreign-owned enterprise in July 2002, and
is entitled to a 50% relief on PRC enterprise income
tax for the subsequent three years. Accordingly, no
provision for PRC enterprise income tax has been
made for the year ended 31st December 2003.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents: (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

PRC enterprise income tax (Continued)

Shanghai Shine Science Company Limited (“Shanghai
Shine Science”), which is a subsidiary of the Company
and operating in Pudong, Shanghai, PRC is subject
to PRC enterprise income tax, before any relief or
concession, at a rate of 15%. Shanghai Shine
Science, which obtained a certificate of “Software
Enterprise” on 10th April 2002, is exempted from PRC
enterprise income tax for the two years starting from
its first profit-making year, and is entitled to a 50%
relief on PRC enterprise income tax for the subsequent
three years. Accordingly, no provision for PRC
enterprise income tax has been made for the year
ended 31st December 2002 and Shanghai Shine
Science was subject to PRC enterprise income tax at
a rate of 7.5% for the year ended 31st December
2003. No provision for PRC enterprise income tax
has been made for as Shaughai Shine Science has
no estimated assessable profits for the year ended
31st December 2003.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulation
applicable to the new established enterprise, Fuzhou
Xinyi Xinwangluo Network Company Limited
(“Xinwangluo”), a subsidiary of the Company, is
exempted from PRC enterprise income tax for its first
profit-making year, and thereafter it is subject to PRC
enterprise income tax at a rate of 33%. Xinwangluo
became profitable after offsetting prior year losses in
the year ended 31st December 2001 and accordingly,
was exempted from PRC enterprise income tax for
the year ended 31st December 2001. Xinwangluo was
subject to PRC enterprise income tax at a rate of
33% for the year ended 31st December 2002. No
provision for PRC enterprise income tax has been
made as Xinwangluo has no estimated assessable
profits for the year ended 31st December 2003.

No provision for PRC enterprise income tax has been
made in the financial statements of Shanghai Xingyishi
Management Consulting Company Limited (“Shanghai
Xingyishi”), a subsidiary of the Company, as Shanghai
Xingyishi has no estimated assessable profits for the
years ended 31st December 2003 and 2002.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 7.

STATEMENT (Continued)

(b)

ANNUAL

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

profit at applicable tax rates:

Profit before tax

Notional tax on profit before tax,
calculated at the applicable rate

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable revenue

Tax effect of unused tax losses

not recognised

Effect of different tax rates
of companies of the Group

Tax expense

Over-provision in prior years

Actual tax (written back)/expense
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RERARETE 2B IER X E
SR ZHIE:
2003 2002
—EE=F —TE_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFR AREFT
(Restated)
(23)
141 15,825
46 5,222
92 3,233
(45) (2,012)
376 68
(187) (5,117)
282 1,394
(520) (214)
(238) 1,180



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

8.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

Fees e

Salaries and other emoluments %*T T E 4t % B

BARET B K

Retirement scheme contributions

Included in the directors’ remuneration were fees of
approximately RMB20,000 (2002: RMB nil) paid or payable

to the non-executive director during the year.

Included in the director’'s remuneration were fees of
approximately RMB53,000 (2002: RMB nil) and RMB53,000
(2002: RMB nil) paid or payable to the two independent non-
executive directors respectively during the year.

During the year ended 31st December 2003, the six executive
directors received individual emoluments of approximately
RMB199,000 (2002: RMB163,000), RMB206,000 (2002:
RMB163,000), RMB213,000 (2002: RMB140,000),
RMB169,000 (2002: RMB142,000), RMB123,000 (2002:
RMB93,000) and RMB84,000 (2002: RMB91,000)

respectively.

R-ZFE=F+-A=+—A(KAR%Z/E)
EEME

BEBEEQNFTEN F1615BEECE

EqU S NN
The Group
rEE

2003 2002

—RE¥=F —TTCF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARETIT

126 -

972 760

22 32

1,120 792

FAMERTES IR ENZEBS
HAREE20,000C (ZEE-F: AR
MET)FAEZHE-

EEMeANBERFARRMSEBLIE
BITESEORZNHENEEOAR
#530,000 (ZZEE=F: ARKZ
7T) B AR#530,0007T (ZET —F:
AREEZIT) -

REBEZE=FET=F+=-A=+—H1t
FE RNBRTEFHREAME S
B4 A R#199,000C (BT — 4
AR #163,0007T) * A R #206,0007T

—ET—F: AR¥163,0007T) * A
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123,000 (ZZEZE_F: AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

8" DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8.

During the years ended 31st December 2003 and 2002, no
directors waived any emoluments. No incentive payments for
joining the Group or compensation for loss of office was paid
or payable to any director for the years ended 31st December
2003 and 2002.

The remuneration of the directors is within the following band:

RMB nil - RMB1,060,000

(approximately equivalent to
HKS$nil to HK$1,000,000)

) INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS ol

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2002:
four) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note
8. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other
one (2002: one) individual is as follows:

HeLEMHE
BARET B K

Salaries and other emoluments

Retirement scheme contributions

ANNUAL REPORT 2003

AREZTT - AR
1,060,0007T (£ E R
T 7T £ 1,000,000/ 7T )

R-ZFEF=ZF+_A=+—H (UAR¥/HE)
EEME (8
B —FR R F 4=
+—HILEFE WEEEWEML
ANEe - REBEE_ZEZT=FRK_FZT
—F+_A=+—HULEFE HMES
ERT MR EMNERKIBERMBER
SERESIEABERmE-

am X
[1] P

EEMEe N FLATEE:

Number of directors

EEZAY
2003 2002
—EE=F —TE-F
9 9
BESHAL

ﬁ%ﬂ—ﬁﬁiﬁfr/\iq] mE(ZTFE=
Fi48) RES BEZHE R ES

BE HEB—FR (ZEZZF148) A

TzMEeBBEET:

2003 2002
—EBE=F —TTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBTT
558 136

14 3

572 139
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Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

) INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9.

(Continued)

During the years ended 31st December 2003 and 2002, no
emoluments were paid or payable to the five highest paid
individuals (including directors and other employees) as
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. The emoluments of the one
(2002: one) individual with the highest emoluments are within
the following band:

RMB nil - RMB1,060,000

(approximately equivalent to
HK$nil to HK$1,000,000)

10. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS 10.

The consolidated profit attributable to shareholders includes
a loss of RMB2,174,000 (2002: RMB nil) which has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

ARBZT - AR#
1,060,0007T (4 #8E R
Z# 5t £ 1,000,000/ 7T)

R-ZEZE=F+_A=+—H(UARKZ/E)
BEHALTHME (&)
REE_ZEZE=_FR_ZTT_F+—

A=Z+—BLFE $ELFAD M=
BNEREEREMEEEANZAS
R ATZME FRBEEMA
AEBFIMARER R 2 REHIER
HBWEE 2R HFAL (ZFFZ
Fi—R)ZHMENFUATEHE:

Number of individuals

AE
2003 2002
—EE=fF —TE_F
1 1
P& 3R FE 4 % F

RAEREEGEMNEIEENARDR
HHMERER 2 BB ARE2,174,0007C
ZETFAREEL)
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Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi) RZFEE=FF+-_A=+—H(UARKZIE)
11. DIVIDENDS 1. RE
(a) Dividends attributable to the year @ XTFERE
2003 2002
—EEC=F —ETE_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AR Fr
Interim dividend declared by the EHARWB AR RE
subsidiaries to its then shareholders ERIBRREIRZ
prior to the Reorganisation A HARR B = 7,000
Final dividend proposed after EHEH BB KRR
the balance sheet date of HFR%0.347%8 1
HK$0.34 cents (equivalent to (A& R
approximately RMBO0.36 cents) AR¥0.365)
(2002: RMB nil) per share —EE &
ARK:F) 1,703 —
1,703 7,000
The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date has EEABBIRRHARE T EER SR
not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date. HERZAMFE-
(b)  Dividend attributable to the previous financial year, (b) BAVHEFEZRE RER
approved and paid during the year #t & ROK A
2003 2002
—BBC=F —ET_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARKTIT

Final dividend in respect of the year HE-_ZTZT—F+=-H

ended 31st December 2001, =+t—HLEFEZ

approved and paid during the year REAR B -REZE

ended 31st December 2002, by —EE_F+_H

a subsidiary to its then shareholders =+ —H It FE# 17

prior to the Reorganisation E/HRE B
ARIMEERZIKRE

L& KR A - 3,000
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Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to shareholders of
approximately RMB708,000 (2002 (restated):
RMB13,165,000) and on the weighted average of
400,754,000 ordinary shares (2002: 354,750,000
ordinary shares prior to the initial public offer but after
the conversion of convertible notes into shares
pursuant to the convertible notes agreement dated 19
July 2002 and the capitalisation issue as if the shares
had been issued since 1st January 2002) in issue
during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is not presented as there

was no dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence
during the years ended 31st December 2003 and 2002.

R-ZFEF=ZF+_A=+—H (UAR¥/HE)
12. BRER
(@ BREXER

(b)

BRREREF) TR IR L =
F#H AR¥E708,0007T (ZFZ
ZF(EHW) : AR K
13,165,0007T) R & X A F
BREJELRE-_ZTST-_Ft
ATNBET Mz R ER R
FERBRABBREE UREXR
LB TR - W R R AR
MR- EE_F—A—HBE%
TZERNBETETBRMET
5#400,754,0000% (ZEBZE =
F : 354,750,0000% ) 5+ & -

ERBERR

HREBEE-TEZ=FK=_ZFT
—F+=ZA=+—HLEFEW
mEEESEEKR AMI&E
23 GREERT -
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Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi) RZFEE=FF+-_A=+—H(UARKZIE)
13. SEGMENT REPORTING 13. o H2H
Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s DEEREAEB CEKHIHET] -
business segments. As all of the Group’s revenue and results HRASE W =mREFEERBH IR
were substantially derived from the PRC, no geographical BRI EEDHME D FE K-

segment information is presented.

Business segment E g
The Group comprises the following main business segments: REBZEEZEBHHFBE:
Software sales g Sales of software relating to HHHE D ERREEERE
securities and financial industries FREMEIEMF
in the PRC
Hardware sales 0 Sales of hardware WHHEE C O HEREM
Network : Provision of network construction Wag T2 DR TR
construction services
Provision of g Provision of technical support and RftEr - mERPREEMm
maintenance consultancy services for its H AR 75 &R EE RS
and other customers
services
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Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi) RZFEE=FF+-_A=+—H(UARKZIE)

13. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 13. W2 |, (&)

(i) An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by (i) AEEIZEH & 2 et
business segments is as follows: REBITWT:
2003 2002
—EBE=HF —EE-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBFT
(Restated)
(E%l)
Revenue from external customers REMREFZWE
Software sales HHHE 10,016 18,001
Hardware sales TS 2,795 9,819
Provision of network construction RERE TRERS
services 197 9,417
Provision of maintenance and R4S X H b AR 7%
other services 3,279 2,667
Total revenue from external AR UK 23 4R BB 16,287 39,904
Other revenue H fth iy 2=
Software sales W IHE 1,977 2177
Unallocated items RAOBIEB 376 432
Total other revenue HEi 8% 2,353 2,609
Total operating revenue g s MR RE 18,640 42,513
Segment results DEEE
Software sales 5 & 6,422 16,496
Hardware sales EEE 733 2,470
Provision of network construction RERE TRERS
services (56) 1,497
Provision of maintenance and 12 AR5 & E AR 75
other services 711 1,577
7,810 22,040
Unallocated operating income and RAOMEERARFALZ
expenses (7,669) (6,215)
Profit from operations £ & 7 141 15,825
Income tax Frig i 238 (1,180)
Minority interests LR RS 329 (1,480)
Profit attributable to shareholders % 5 P& 1 5 A 708 13,165
= z = F £}
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Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi) RZFEE=FF+-_A=+—H(UARKZIE)
13. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 13. oWEH (&)
(ii) An analysis of the Group’'s depreciation and (ii) REBREHHEE D 2T E
amortisation by business segments is as follows: BB
2003 2002
—EBE=HF —EE-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREFIT
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH
Software sales HHHE 1,213 1,195
Hardware sales EeE R - =
Provision of network construction IREPE TR
services 45 -
Provision of maintenance and IRH S R E MRS
other services - 38
Unallocated assets AOEEE 1,026 694

2,284 1,927
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Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi) RZFEE=FF+-_A=+—H(UARKZIE)
13. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 13. 22/, (&)
(i) An analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by (i) AEBEZREBI>BEHZEE
business segments is as follows: FEBEITBAT:
2003 2002
—EBE=HF —EE-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR Tor
(Restated)
(E%)
Segment assets PHEE
Software sales HHHE 11,877 9,639
Hardware sales EeE R 99 747
Provision of network construction IREPE TRERS
services 146 5,906
Provision of maintenance and IRH A S R E MRS
other services 85 122
12,207 16,414
Unallocated assets ROWMEE 44,070 24,736
Total assets BEE 56,277 41,150
Segment liabilities PBEME
Software sales I E 1,898 2,556
Hardware sales WHHEE 28 772
Provision of network construction RS T2 RS
services 871 1,940
Provision of maintenance and TR M N E b AR5
other services 31 527
2,828 5,795

Unallocated liabilities KomAE 3,969 26,513

BN
¢
=

b

5
/

Total liabilities

\
A

6,797 32,308
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Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi) R-IEFE=F+_A=+—H(UAEKZE)
13. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 13. oWEH (&)
(iv)  An analysis of the Group’s capital and expenditure by (iv) AEBZREBHHBEH 2ER
business segments is as follows: Mz oamT:
2003 2002
—EBE=HF —EE-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREFIT
Capital expenditure BEREX
Software sales BUHEHE 5,720 5,087
Hardware sales EeE R - =
Provision of network construction IREPE TR
services 79 -
Provision of maintenance and 12 AR5 & E AR 75
other services - 58
Unallocated assets AOEEE 1,678 2,077

7,477 7,222
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Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi) RZFEE=FF+-_A=+—H(UARKZIE)
14. FIXED ASSETS 14. BEEE
(@) The Group (a) P-4
Leasehold
improve- Furniture
Land and ments ~ Computer and Motor
buildings fE equipment equipment vehicles Total
THREF fEIRE ElRE HKARRE RE Bt

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETRT

Cost RE
At 1st January 2003 R-_ZEZE=F
—H—H 121 1,750 3,044 564 1,182 6,661
Additions NE - 845 864 230 310 2,249
Disposals & - - (107) - (393) (500)
At 31st December R-ZE=F
2003 +=ZB=+-H 121 2,595 3,801 794 1,099 8,410
Accumulated BiHE
depreciation
At 1st January 2003 RNZEE=F
—H—H 25 1,086 1,348 103 243 2,805
Charge for the year FRALH 6 567 900 146 129 1,748
Written back & B
on disposals — — (70) — (91) (161)
At 31st December R-ZE=F
2003 +=ZB=+-H 31 1,653 2,178 249 281 4,392
Net book value BHEFE
At 31st December R-ZE=F
2003 +=ZRB=+-H 90 942 1,623 545 818 4,018
At 31st December 2002 R-ZTT_-F
+-RA=+—H 96 664 1,696 461 939 3,856
As at 31st December 2003, the land having the carrying R_EE=F+_A=+—H KM@
amounts of approximately RMB45,000 (2002: RMB48,000) is SEEHAREA5000T (ZEE = F:
located in the PRC and held under medium-term leases. AR #48,0007T) 2 T3 J5 6z p B -
WAREHELFE -
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Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

14. FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

(b) The Company

Cost
Additions and at 31st December
2003

Accumulated depreciation
Charge for the year and at
31st December 2003

Net book value
At 31st December 2003

ANNUAL

REPORT

R-ZFEF=ZF+_A=+—H (UAR¥/HE)
14. BEEE (&)
(b) Vi NN
Leasehold
improve- Furniture
ments Computer and
HE equipment equipment Total
fEIRE ElRHE BARRE Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFRT ARMTT ARETT AREFR
FE
RERR-ZTT=F
+-RA=+—H 147 27 106 280
RitHE
FRATHER-ZE=F
+=A=+—-H 74 9 21 104
BREEE
W-ZZ=F+-H
=+—-H 73 18 85 176
2003



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi) RZFEE=FF+-_A=+—H(UARKZIE)
15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. BEEE
The Group
REH
Development
costs
B & R AR
RMB’000
ARKEFIT
Cost RE
At 1st January 2003 R-_ZEE=F—H—H 4,417
Additions through internal development A 20 B A AN 4,048
Additions through external development SN EB 8 K A 1,180
At 31st December 2003 R=-ZBZE=F+=HA=+—8H 9,645
Accumulated amortisation BN &
At 1st January 2003 R-_ZEE=F—H—H 312
Charge for the year FANXZH 536
At 31st December 2003 R=-ZZBZE=F+=HA=+—8H 848
Net book value BREFE
At 31st December 2003 R-ZEZE=F+=-HA=+—H 8,797
At 31st December 2002 RZEE-_F+=-—RA=+—H 4,105
The amortisation charge for the year is included in “cost FABEZHRNEGEEREREEKX
of sales” in the consolidated income statement. K] HIHR o
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Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi) RZFEE=FF+-A=+—H(UAR%ZIHE)
16. GOODWILL 16. BE
The Group
rEE
Negative
goodwill
EmE
RMB’000
AR Fr
Cost R1&
Additions through acquisition of partial interest ERWE—EH B QR0 &S
in a subsidiary and at 31 December 2003 EMERZEZT=F
+=-—RA=+—8H (629)
Accumulated amortisation E g £
Amortisation for the year and FREBERR-_ZTT=F
at 31st December 2003 +ZRA=+—8 32
Net book value BREFE
At 31st December 2003 R-EE=F+=-H=+—H (597)
Negative goodwill is recognised as income on a straight-line EEBUERIRNAFHERERA
basis over 5 years. The amortisation of negative goodwill for FRNEPEHEERGERERI—R
the year is included in “general and administrative expenses” FATEAZ] 78R

in the consolidated income statement.

ANNUAL REPORT 2003



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi) RZFEE=FF+-_A=+—H(UARKZIE)

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. RMIBARZ®RE

The Company

AT
2003
—EB=F
RMB’000
ARMF T
Unlisted shares, at cost kETRG EREREE 19
As at 31 December 2003, the details of all subsidiaries of the R-_ZTETE=F+_A=+—8 &2
Company were as follows: RIFTEMB AR ZFBWT:
Proportion of
ownership interest
BRERLH
Particulars of
issued and fully Group’s
paid share capital/ effective
Place of registered capital interest
Name of company incorporation BETRAR i3] Direct Indirect  Principal activities
RAER FEAR AR 3L 3t B RA/EMEAFE ERER HE Mg IEEE
Shine Science & Technology ~ British Virgin 100,000 ordinary 100% 100% - Investment holding
(BVI) Company Limited Islands (‘BVI") shares of RAZK
(“Shine Science BVI") RBERTHE US$0.01 each
((EBRRES]) 100,000 &
BREE
0.01 X T2 EBK
Fujian Shine Science The People’s Registered capital 100% - 100%  Development of computer
& Technology Co., Ltd. Republic of HfEA software, resale of
(“Fujian Shine Science”) China (“PRC") RMB12,500,000 hardware, provision of
(note (3)) REARLM AR #12,500,0007T system integration and
BREMEREBRAR (TwEl) maintenance in the PRC
([RE#E]) (Ki) ErEREEREMN
BERMHRREZR
SR AR
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31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of company
NEER

Shanghai Shine Science
Company Limited
(“Shanghai Shine Science”)
(note (b))

FEHERMRARRA
(TLBHE]) (Kib)

Fuzhou Xinyi Xinwangluo
Network Company Limited
("Xinwangluo”) (note (c))

BMHENBRAERRA
([FEHBE])

(B3 (c)

Shanghai Xingyishi
Management Consulting
Company Limited
(“Shanghai Xingyishi”)
(note (d))

LEREREERA
ARAT
(TEBREA])
(K@)

ANNUAL
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Place of
incorporation

A AR 3 3 B

PRC
E

PRC
HE

PRC
E

2003

Particulars of
issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital
ERTRAR
RA/GRELRFE

Registered capital
A EA
RMBS5,000,000
AE#5,000,0007

Registered capital
HMEXR
RMB1,000,000
AR #1,000,0007

Registered capital
HfER
RMB500,000

AR #500,0007

R-BE=Ff+—_A=+—H (UAR¥3IE)

17.

Proportion of
ownership interest

REERLA
Group’s
effective
interest
K5 Direct Indirect
ERRR BE g2
100% - 100%
67% - 67%
60% - 60%

RRBRARZRE (&)

Principal activities

TEEH

Development of computer
software, resale of
hardware, provision of
system integration and
maintenance in the PRC

ETPEREEREMG
BEETMHREMH
ZHEERANEE RS

Resale of hardware and
network installation
in the PRC
EREBERHRED
BETE

Provision of computer and
management
consultancy
services in the PRC

ETERUERRER
EEL
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31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

17.

18.

R-BE=Ff+—_A=+—H (UAR¥3IE)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. RMBEARZRE (8#)
Notes: Bt et :
(@) Fujian Shine Science is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise (a) BENBRNPBRK L ZINE R
established in the PRC to be operated for 24.5 years up to ¥ OHKEHRAE45F BT -
July 2022. —Ft ALk
(b) Shanghai Shine Science is an equity joint venture established (b) LEEFEARFTERICEERE
in the PRC to be operated for 20 years up to February 2021. ¥ HEEHBR20F E2=F
In October 2003, the Group acquired the remaining 10% of ——F-_AIt-R=_ZTEZE=F1+57-
its interest in Shanghai Shine Science and nominated Ms. NEBWRBEN EEHEHT10%
Gu Yun, the Chairperson of the Company, to hold the 10% B WREARFEFEEEL L
interest in trust for and on behalf of the Group. MEXARXRRAEBIFAEZI0%
WS o
() Xinwangluo is an equity joint venture established in the PRC (0) MEMBAE RN IE)ZiZ/E.\’ﬁA
to be operated for 10 years up to June 2011. EhE HEKEHBAI10F &
z— f15/\)% ke
(d) Shanghai Xingyishi is an equity joint venture established in (d) EBEEZRRF Iﬁﬁiizéﬁ/\
the PRC to be operated for 20 years up to May 2022. BEhE HEEHBEA20F =
T__FHAIE
INVESTMENTS 18. RE&
The Group
rEE
2003 2002
—EE=F —TE_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARKTF T
Trading securities (at market value) EEXRF (BME)
Listed equity securities outside Hong Kong ~ & #E4h 2 b IR A E 163 105
= z =z = =3 F £}
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Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi) RZFEE=FF+-_A=+—H(UARKZIE)
19. INVENTORIES 19. FE8
The Group
REH
2003 2002
—EE=F —ET-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥® T AR TFr
Computer hardware and accessories BISEMH R EES
acquired for resale m g A 2 B4 76 151
All inventories were stated at cost as at 31st December 2003 RZZEZE=FR =TT _F+=-A=

and 2002. T—BZHAEGFEAUREBENEK.
20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. EWERMRKHMEKRKIE
The Group The Company
rEH KATF
2003 2002 2003
—EE=F —ET=F —EE=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARETFT AR¥TFT
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U5 BfT /B8 1 B 3B - - 28,896
Trade receivables & 45 B 3R 1,213 10,293 -
Rental and other deposits HekEMmZER 298 364 89
Interest receivable JE U T B - 86 -
Listing expenses prepaid B EmRAX - 2,406 =
Other prepayments and receivables HEaiE A IE R
J& Wk IA 555 400 159
2,066 13,549 29,144
All of the trade and other receivables, apart from rental and BRHEeREMIZESIN FEAAE R
other deposits, are expected to be recovered within one year. IR R H A UK IA R — F A
@ o
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31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables

(net of provision for bad and doubtful debts) with the following

ageing analysis:

Within 1 month

More than 1 month but less than 3 months
More than 3 months but less than 6 months
More than 6 months but less than 12 months
More than 12 months

Less: Provision for bad and
doubtful debts

[=H]

BARA
18 A %318 A A
3f& A & 6fE A A
6fEl A& 1218 A
12@ A 1%

o
= [

W RIEIREE

The Group generally grants credit terms of 30 days to 180

days to its customers.

21. TAX RECOVERABLE

Value-added tax prepaid
Value-added tax refunds receivable

21.

BRIEER
& U 3 1B B AR AR

20.

R-BE=Ff+—_A=+—H (UAR¥3IE)

FE W AR R B2 Bt BB W R IR (40)

NG N E R G N
WAk R (FNBR RIBAR AR ) RRik D AT 40

T~

2003
—%R=F

RMB’000
ARETT

320
604
160

651
481

2,216

(1,003)

1,213

The Group
rEH
2002
—EBE_F
RMB’000
AREF T

5,866
908
2,831

823
655

11,083

(790)

10,293

KEE—RETEFIVEISOHEE

o

A Uy [ i 78

2003
—%R=F

RMB’000
ARETFT

74
912

986

I
Hr

The Group
rEH
2002
—TE_F
RMB’000
AREF T

500

500
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31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi) RZFEE=FF+-_A=+—H(UARKZIE)
22. FIXED DEPOSITS 22, EHER
The Group
REH
2003 2002
—EE=HF —ET-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Frx AR TFr
Deposits with banks maturing after 17 3 H Bt
three months from the date = {& A 1% % B8
of the deposits ZHRITIFER 12,000 =
23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23. RERALEEY
The Group The Company
REH ¥ NN
2003 2002 2003
—EE=F —FE-F —EE=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR TFr AR¥ T
Deposits with banks maturing within 173 H Bt
three months from the date =& A W 2 Hf
of the deposits ZHRITIFE R 20,373 = 8,480
Cash at bank RITIHR & 7,757 18,686 2,021
Cash on hand FHERE 75 58 =
28,205 18,744 10,501
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31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi) RZFEE=FF+-_A=+—H(UARKZIE)

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24, BEHNBRFKREMENRIE

The Group The Company

rEH KA F

2003 2002 2003
—EE=F —ETE_F —EBBC=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AREF T ARMF T

Trade payables FETBR 3K 268 2,713 =
Deposits received from customers AEF W% ® 1,825 2. 556 =
Employees welfare payable FET B T4g A 901 1,316 -
Accrued expenses and other payables [t X &
H fth & 5K I8 1,297 1,156 450
Other tax payables H b JE BT IR 246 1,287 =
Dividend payable to a minority B —RDERE
shareholder s - 505 -
Dividend payable FE A AR B - 6,000 =
4,537 16,688 450
Included in trade and other payables are trade payables with ST FE S BR SR % H M FE S FRIB 2 FE
the following ageing analysis: RRERRSTHT:
The Group
rEH
2003 2002
—EEC=F —TE_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®Fr AR FT
Within 1 month 11& A - 2,687
After 6 months but less than 12 months 618 A& 12 A R 210 =
After 12 months 121E A 12 58 26

268 2,713
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31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi) RZFEE=FF+-_A=+—H(UARKZIE)
25. DEFERRED INCOME 25. EEWA
The Group
rEH
2003 2002
—EBC=F —ET_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARETFT
At 1st January Kn—AHA—H 526 506
Released to consolidated income statement % & 43 & U 25 & (526) (506)
Income deferred during the year FREERA 779 526
At 31st December ®n+=—A=+—8” 779 526
26. INCOME TAX PAYABLE 26. ERRBH
The Group
rEH
2003 2002
—EE= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARETFT
At 1 January Kn—AHA—H 794 -
Provision for PRC enterprise FRFREDE
income tax for the year BT 15 T B 1 - 799
Over-provision in prior years MEFEBERE (520) (214)
PRC enterprise income tax (paid)/ FRE (&) RE
refunded for the year PR EREH (113) 209

At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 161 794
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Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

27.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Pursuant to an agreement dated 19th July 2002, Shine
Science BVI, a subsidiary of the Company, issued convertible
(the “Notes”) for
HK$14,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB14,840,000). Each holder of the Notes had the right to
convert the whole, but not part, of the principal amount of

notes an aggregate amount of

the Notes into shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of
the Company. The Notes were interest-bearing and carried
an interest of 8% per annum on the principal amount of the
Notes outstanding, accruing from the date of the issue of the
Notes but no interest would be payable if the Notes are
converted into the shares of the Company. Further details of
the Notes are set out in the prospectus dated 4th August
2003 issued by the Company.

On 18th June 2003, the holders of the Notes converted the
Notes into 451,644 ordinary shares in the Company. Further
details are disclosed in note 29(d).

27.

R-BE=Ff+—_A=+—H (UAR¥3IE)

TRERERE

REAHE-ZT_F+tA+NBZ
3% - & A 7 Mt B A 5] Shine Science
BVIZBTHRBRERE ([E&]) BRE
#$14,000,000/ 7T (A9HE R AR
14,840,0007T) - S ZHE B ABES
MR EBEZH MEBI>AEER
AKAa AR ZREBEOCOIEITL K
M-EEMBNE WHREREITHH
BREBRINASRFELRSER
BoEMEEREAERRRIRD: ﬁlJﬂ/,\
TREMAE - BERAER 2 #
EE AW WFH‘J%EHH%_Eg:
FNANHZHBKRER-

R-ZZEE=F A+ N NB JBEKE
%ExZHﬁMﬂﬁmﬁaﬁxﬂriﬁﬁﬁ
AN RA51, 6440 iR R o — P EFIEH
I EE29(d) °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

R-BE=Ff+—_A=+—H (UAR¥3IE)

28. EEF1E

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

28. DEFERRED TAXATION

CRABEHBEERAR

(a) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (a)

ATRENE B RBEFERE
‘EWZIELLﬁIEiéfE/ (&

The following are the major deferred tax assets/
(liabilities) recognised and movements thereon during

ANNUAL

the current and prior years: &) RE@EE
The Group
x5E
Provision
Tax Development  for doubtful Tax
losses costs debt total
HEER RN REEE BEAF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB,000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETFZ
At 1st January 2002 R-ZBEZ-£—-A—H
- as previously reported — LRI AR - = = =
- adjustment on adoption - RerERER
of SSAP 12 (revised) F125% (KBF]) 2 BB 40 = 80 120
- as restated —-EHE5I 40 - 80 120
(Charged)/credited to iR WER (8R) /5 A
consolidated income 228 (H57() - (615) 20 (595)
statement (note 7(a))
At 31st December 2002 R_ZEE_F+-_A=t—H
(restated) (E 5) 40 (615) 100 (475)
At 1st January 2003 RZZE=4F—-H—H
- as previously reported — LRI R - = = =
- adjustment on adoption - RReHERERE12%
of SSAP 12 (revised) (BERT) 2 RE 40 (615) 100 (475)
- as restated — &7 40 (615) 100 (475)
(Charged)/credited to RiREER (8R) /3 A
consolidated income ZE® (MiE7() 335 (705) 88 (282)
statement (note 7(a))
At 31st December 2003 N\ZFZ=F+=-A=+—H 375 (1,320) 188 (757)

REPORT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR

31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi) RZFEE=FF+-_A=+—H(UARKZIE)
28. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 28. IEFERLIE (%)
(a) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (@) CORIRAELZBEEERAE
(Continued) (%)
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax AT RBIEM R RAGNE
balances for financial reporting purposes: IEFR IR 48R D AT
2003 2002
—BB=F —TE_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT
Deferred tax assets EERIRE E 563 140
Deferred tax liabilities EXEHIBEE (1,320) (615)
(757) (475)
(b) Deferred tax assets not recognised (b) FAEREEHEEE
The Group and the Company have not recognised P I S T

deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of

5453 Bl 4 ki = (=
approximately RMB449,000 (2002: RMB68,000) and 1853 B AR #449,0007C (

N " _
approximately RMB381,000 (2002: RMB nil) FEF: AR¥68,0007T) K
respectively. The tax losses do not expire under current HAR381,000T (ZFEZE =
tax legislation. FARETL) BRIELEHE

B 1R IR A B A G BOE
BIET & B8
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31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

29. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised — Ordinary shares of HK$0.01
(equivalent to approximately RMB0.0106)
each:

Upon incorporation of the Company
(note (a))

Subdivision of shares into HK$0.01
each (note (b))

Increase in authorised share capital
each (note (e))

Issued and fully paid — Ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 (equivalent to approximately
RMBO0.0106) each:

Issue of shares upon incorporation
(note (a) and (c))

Subdivision of shares into HK$0.01
each (note (b))

Issue of shares arising from the
Reorganisation (note (c))

Conversion of convertible notes
into shares (note (d))

Issue of shares under initial public
offering (note (f))

Capitalisation issue of shares (note (g))

At 31st December

ANNUAL REPORT 2003

R-BE=Ff+—_A=+—H (UAR¥3IE)
29. WA
The Group and the Company
AEERAEARAF
2003
—EE=F
Number
of shares Amount
BB &R HIE
000 RMB’000
FR AR Frx
EE - SREEOIET
(KIBE N ARK0.01067T)
ZEBR:
A A B 5 A 37 B
(Kt#t(a)) 1,000 106
FRATREBE.ONET
2 &1n (Kiatwn)) 9,000 =
1 h00% TE AR A
(Ktat(e)) 4,990,000 52,894
5,000,000 53,000
BEETEBRE-SREE
0.01% 7T (MWHEER
AR#0.01067T) < @AY :
A FE AR 37 5 B 1T AR 1D
(Hiit(@) %(c)) 100 11
FRATREBE.ONET
2 &1n (Kiaton)) 900 =
EEH BTG
(Ktat(c)) 780 8
HBpamRER
ZRD (Kit) 452 5
BIEERXARAEE
BATRR D (K7 aE(1) 118,250 1,253
BEARBEITRG
(Ktit(g)) 352,518 3,737

R+=-—A=+—8H 473,000 5,014
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31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

298

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The comparative share capital of the Group as at 31st

December 2002 shown on the consolidated balance sheet

represented the issued share capital of Shine Science BVI at
that date.

Notes:

(a)

On 15th July 2002, the Company was incorporated with an
authorised share capital of HK$100,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB106,000), dividend into 1,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each. On 16th July 2002, 100,000 ordinary
shares were issued at par, nil paid.

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by all the
shareholders on 17th June 2003, by means of a sub-division
of share capital, the par value to the ordinary shares of the
Company was reduced from HK$0.10 each to HK$0.01 each,
and every issued and unissued ordinary share of HK$0.10
each was sub-divided into ten shares.

On 17th June 2003, the Company acquired the entire issued
share capital of Shine Science & Technology (BVI) Limited
(“Shine Science BVI”), in connection with the Reorganisation
in note 1(a), in consideration for (i) the transfer of 1,000,000
nil paid ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company
held by the shareholders of the Company and (ii) the issue
and allotment of 780,000 ordinary shares, to the shareholders
of Shine Science BVI. The Company became the holding
company of the Group with effect from 17th June 2003.

On 18th June 20083, the convertible notes were converted
into 451,644 ordinary shares in the Company at a total
consideration of approximately RMB14,840,000, of which
approximately RMB5,000 was credited to share capital and
the balance of approximately RMB14,835,000 was credited
to the share premium account. Further details of the
convertible notes are set out in note 27.

2o

R-BE=Ff+—_A=+—H (UAR¥3IE)
B A (&)

AEBRGEEERBBERITHRE
T+ A=t+—HZUEBERLEE
Shine Science BVII#% B 2 B %17 Ik

(a) ARRIR=ZZTEE_FtA+HHF
i 5K 37 - % FE R A8 & 100,0007% 7T
(HHEER ARK106,000T) © 5
#1,000,0008% & % I {& 0.107% JT
2EBR-RZZEZ=F+LA T+
B - 100,000% & 38 A% 12 B A T
B#iT-

(o) BEZEBRIANR_ZZTE=F~A+
TtHBBEESHRA 2 EEAZE
B AnEERRzEERER
010 TR EERO.01E T 8K
E{EO0.108 T 2 B #1T R M R BT
ERBRSHFR TR

(c) RZZTZ=FA+ER KAA7A
BB 5 1 () P il 2 22 48 B A Shine
Science & Technology (BVI)
Limited ( [ Shine Science BVI| ) =
2HEBITRA RER()EEH
RARBRERBFAERA A
1,000,0008% & B2 I 0.01% 7T 2
R E AR R (i) 377 R B
780,000/% & i@ % F Shine Science
BVIZIRER - ARAREZTT=F
A+tHBEBKAREEZIERA
o

(d) RZFZ=F XA+ N8 TJHK
ZERETHE O UHDARE
14,840,000 2 B R EBREA R A
451,644 LB - ER AR
5,000 A BR AT BR - R EE XY A RS
14,835,0007T Bl 5+ A B% 17 )i B AR
ERABRBRER 2 FBEAMFE
27
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298

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(e)

ANNUAL

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by all the
shareholders on 28th July 2003, the authorised share capital
of the Company was increased from HK$100,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB106,000) to HK$50,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB53,000,000) by the creation of an
additional 4,990,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
ranking pari passu with then existing ordinary shares in all
respects.

Pursuant to the listing of the shares of the Company on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange on 12th August 20083,
118,250,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were issued
and offered for subscription at a price of HK$0.30 (equivalent
to approximately RMB0.318) per ordinary share, resulting in
cash proceeds (net of share issuance expenses) of
approximately HK$25,193,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB26,705,000).

On 12th August 2003, share premium of approximately
HK$3,525,184 (equivalent to approximately RMB3,737,000)
was capitalised for the issuance of 352,518,356 ordinary
shares to the Company’s shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company as at the close
of business on 28th July 2003 in the same proportion as
their then shareholdings in the Company.

REPORT 2003

2o

R-BE=Ff+—_A=+—H (UAR¥3IE)

MRS (%)
it
€ HREBRAN-TT=FLA=

TNABBBZEMRER KNQF
#E 48 58 4,990,000,0000% & A% M &
001 Tz EBR (FFHTEHEE
RRELERRZARSER) 1§
A TE B AN B 100,000/8 7T (M1 &
® AR 106,000 ) #& =
50,000,000 7T (K9 HHE R AR
53,000,0007T) °

BREARAROR_ZEZE=FN\A
TZHBRE XA ER LW
118,250,0000% & f% E {5 0.01/5 7T
2EBRIEZEGREMAR0.30E T
(HHERARE0.318T) 2RBE
BERAOKEE BAmMENBRRMNDE
THXEESBASHMBREY
25,193,000 7T (K HE R AR
26,705,0007T) °

RZZEZ=FNA+=H %
3,625,184 L (WHEERARE
3,737,0007T) 2 R B EHE T E
NURARZEE=FLA=-F+N
BEXERNMERRRIADFRKE
Bz ADRBRE IREEERFR
XAB 2 HKRDLIH - BT
352,518,3560% & & %
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31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi) RZFEE=FF+-_A=+—H(UARKZIE)
30. RESERVES 30. f#fR
(a) The Group (@ ZA%5H
Common
General welfare
Share Merger reserve reserve  Retained
premium reserve fund fund profits Total
(note (i) (note (i) (note (iii))
DER
BBEE aHREE -REEES mfEE RERAN @t
(W) (WaEG)  (Krati)
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000
AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETR
At 1st January 2002 R-_ZZE-_F-F—H
- as previously reported LT - - 1,098 519 4,184 5,801
~ prior period adjustments —ERRERNNEER
in respect of deferred (K53)
tax (note 3) - - - - 105 105
- as restated -l - = 1,098 519 4,289 5,906
Net profit for the year FERMEF (85)
(as restated) - - - - 13,165 13,165
Dividends in respect of BEFERE
previous year (note 11(b)) (HaE11() - - - - (3,000) (3,000)
Dividends in respect of KEERE
current year (note 11(a)) (Hiit11(a) - - - - (7,000) (7,000)
Effect of the Reorganisation =~ B # - (2,340) = = = (2,340)
Transfer to reserves EREGEE - - 1,038 519 (1,557) =
At 31st December 2002 RZBZZ
+-B=+-A - 30) 213 1,038 5,897 6,731
At 1st January 2003 W-EE=F-F—H
- as previously reported ~MAZR - (2,340) 2,136 1,038 6,367 7,201
- prior period adjustments - BERERMBAR
in respect of deferred (Ffi23)
tax (note 3) - - - - (470) (470)
- as restated - &5 = (2,340) 2,136 1,038 5,897 6,731
Premium on conversion of HAATHARER
convertible notes into shares {7k 2 E B
(note 29(d)) (Hf#£29(0)) 14,835 - - - - 14,835
Premium on issue of shares ~ BLERAREE
under initial public 2k aE
offering (note 29f) (HiE29(1) 36,350 - - - - 36,350
Effect of the Reorganisation =~ B & - (11) = = S (11)
Capitalisation issue of EREARR
shares (note 29(g)) (Hf7#29(g) (3,737) = = = = (3,737)
Share issuance expenses RNETRZ (10,898) - - - - (10,898)
Net profit for the year FREF - - - - 708 708
Transfer to reserves EREGEE - - 17 8 (25) =
At 31st December 2003 R-ZBE=F
+=B=+-& 36,55  (2351) 2,153 1,046 6580 43,978
= z z = F LR £}
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30.

RESERVES (Continued)

Notes:

U

(i)

ANNUAL

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the amount of reserves of
subsidiaries that have been capitalised as a result of the
merger.

General reserve fund

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
each of the PRC subsidiaries is required to appropriate at
least 10% of after-tax profit (after offsetting prior year’s
losses), based on the PRC statutory financial statements
prepared in accordance with the generally accepted
accounting principals (“GAAP”) and financial regulations
applicable to the PRC enterprises, to a general reserve fund
until the balance of the fund reaches 50% of the PRC
subsidiary’s registered capital. Thereafter, any further
appropriation can be made at the directors’ discretion.

The general reserve fund can be utilised to offset the prior
years’ losses, or be utilised to increase the capital on the
condition that the general reserve fund shall be maintained
at a minimum of 25% of the registered capital after such
increase.

The directors of Fujian Shine Science have proposed to
transfer 10% of the profit after taxation, to the general reserve
fund for the years ended 31st December 2003 and 2002.

The directors of Shanghai Shine Science, Xinwangluo and
Shanghai Xingyishi determined not to make any appropriation
to the general reserve fund as these subsidiaries have
sustained loss for the year ended 31st December 2003.

The directors of Shanghai Shine Science and Xinwangluo
have proposed to transfer 10% of the profit after taxation to
the general reserve fund for the year ended 31st December
2002. The directors of Shanghai Xingyishi determined not to
make any appropriation to the general reserve fund for the
year ended 31st December 2002 as Xingyishi has sustained
loss for the year.

REPORT 2003

RZFEE=

FH+ZA=+—H(UAARKZIE)

&t (&)

et -
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(i)

BOHEE

EHREEENBARNRAHMER
EXzHBEE-

—REEES

BEFEBBEZRER SHEH
MBARNEIE EFE 2 EBE
BARBESREMNGTRA([A
REtRA) RPBECEERZ
W% R Ol 4R 2 2 BA TE B 15 3k
BRI AR EED10% - 1ER—
BEFEEE: BEEES Z*ﬁtﬂ
FEMEAE 2 EMEARS0% o H
1& - EE A MIERTE VB E ] 5E SN
B

—RFHEECATREREBRTFE
2B RS ME AR A
g —REBESBEERFRTD
REEMEZAR25%

BRNBECEFTREAGBE_FTT
=ER-FE-F+-A=1+-8H
IEFERRTBR BN 10%E B E—
e

MR LEERE FEFEERLE
EEENBE_TT=F+_A=

T-HLEFEHEESER RZEMH
BRARBAZEFARAENE R —REFHE
HE BN

FEFERHENBRCETER
EBREE_ZT _F+_A=+—
HIEFERBEEF10%E — B F
BEL IBREFCEFDRR
EMBE_ZTZE_F+-_A=+—
HIrFESBEMREE —RFHE
E¢ RASEREINAFEHRF
BiE-
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31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

30.

RESERVES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

Common welfare reserve fund

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC and the articles of association of all the subsidiaries in
PRC, each of the subsidiaries is required to appropriate 5%
to 10% of their statutory profit after tax under PRC GAAP
after offsetting prior years’ losses to common welfare reserve
fund. Such fund can be used for collective employees
benefits, but cannot be used to pay for employees welfare
expenses.

The directors of Fujian Shine Science have proposed to
transfer 5% of the profit after taxation to the common wlefare
reserve fund for the years ended 31st December 2003 and
2002.

The directors of Shanghai Shine Science, Xinwangluo and
Shanghai Xingyishi determined not to make any appropriation
to the common welfare reserve fund as these subsidiaries
have sustained loss for the year ended 31st December 2003.

The directors of Shanghai Shine Science and Xinwangluo
have proposed to transfer 5% of the profit after taxation to
the common welfare reserve fund for the year ended 31st
December 2002. The directors of Shanghai Xingyishi
determined not to make any appropriation to the common
welfare reserve fund for the year ended 31st December 2002
as Xingyishi has sustained loss for the year.

30.

R-BE=Ff+—_A=+—H (UAR¥3IE)

&t (&)

et - (4&)

(iii)

AHBANFERS

RIBEEBBREEG EBERAEP
B BARZARMBESEME
EWBARNIEHEBEFE ZBE
% BABBREREARSTRAG
H 2 AERFE R T 5%Z 10% 5
A ERHFEES - ZEELTH
REIEEREN BEFTAEIM
BIEMEAL-

REBE_ZTZE=FR_ZFTT_F+
“A=t-HIEFE BEFEXZ
EFERBBRRREN%BEHE
AEBHEES

HRLEEFE FTEFERRLE
HERANBE_TT=F+_A=
T BRLEFEFERBER §Z
EHBARZETARAETERAALK
R M 18 & 1F h AR B R

BRI BN R ESER
REEBRE_TZT_F+_A=+
—RAIEFEBRBERFGPE N K
BB LEESH EER
ErERHBE_TT_F+-A=
T HLFEEREAREEAL
BREES REAREEHRNZT
BRI E R

I
Hr
H
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31st December 2003 (Expressed in Renminbi)

RESERVES (Continued)

The Company

Premium arising on conversion {3 ] # i = 1%

of convertible notes into R 2 m(E
shares (note 29(d)) (Kt #£29(d))
Premium arising on issue of BRXAREE
shares under initial public BTG 2% E
offering (note 29(f)) (Kt :29(1)
Capitalisation issue of shares B AR BIT RGO
(note 29(g)) (Kt7£29(g))
Share issuance expenses MR BEITH X
Net loss for the year FRFEE
At 31st December 2003 R-ZBE=F
+t=A=+—H

Notes:

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman lIslands,
share premium is distributable to shareholders, subject to
the condition that the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of share premium if (i) it
is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due, or (i) the realisable value of its assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and
its issued share capital account.

At 31st December 2003, the aggregate amount of the
Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
was approximately RMB34,376,000 computing in accordance
with the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands
and the Company’s articles of association. This includes the
Company’s share premium of approximately RMB36,550,000
less accumulated losses of approximately RMB2,174,000,
which is available for distribution provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed, the
Company will be able to pay off its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.

REPORT 2003

R-BE=Ff+—_A=+—H (UAR¥3IE)
30. f##E (&)
(b) VNN
Share Accumulated

premium losses Total
% 12 % 8 2t EE ot
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TFr ARBTFT AR TFT
14,835 - 14,835
36,350 - 36,350
(8,737) - (8,737)
(10,898) - (10,898)
- (2,174) (2,174)
36,550 (2,174) 34,376

Bt
RIERSEHSQANE (BFTA) IR
19 % 8 A 7 Ik T A& 3R M s ()RR
KBS EERGEEEET ARG,
K(EEASHEERAMIRESR
BEREEITRARZRE AAA
AN B IR SR AR 2 sk R AR 1 5

BERIEH DKo

RZZEE=F+=-_A=+—H0"'K
NRAMED IR PR 2 FEEBEN
AR #34,376,0007T JhiRIERH S
BEARE(BFAR) RAARZ
ARMABERMAGE- P BE
KARBRMHMEEHARE
36,550,000 T3 RATE B AR
2,174,0007C Al £ 5 K - 1fE X BE
KRR B B Bif& - R AR ZBRESE
BEAREBIBER-



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %% WK MR
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31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 28th July 2003
for the purpose of providing incentives or rewards to eligible
persons for their contributions to the Group. The Scheme will
expire on 27th July 2013. Under the Scheme, the Company
may grant options to any person who is a director or employee
(whether full-time or part-time) of the Group or any entity in
which the Group holds any equity interest, or any classes of
supplier, customer, consultant, adviser, manager or officer of
the Group or any entity in which the Group holds any equity
interest.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed ten
per cent. of the total shares of the Company in issue at the
date of listing of the Company. The total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not in
aggregate exceed thirty per cent. of the total shares of the
Company in issue from time to time. The total number of
shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted (including both exercised or outstanding
options) to each eligible person in any 12-month period must
not exceed one per cent. of the total shares of the Company
in issue. Any further grant of options in excess of the individual
limit must be subject to shareholders’ approval.

31.

R-BE=Ff+—_A=+—H (UAR¥3IE)

RS

AABZBRAEE ([%ET8]) =
BER-_ZZ=FtA_+/\BR#S
ZHERBRREM BHERAEER
ATHEAEEZ BREHSE R &
E-ZEMER_T—=F+tA=
TEREm-REZE ARF AR
REB AN EE B EIREZHE
MEENEE (THRE2BHFRE) =X
REB SN EE A EIREZHE
R RERS &P RE AR R B 32
HETERHBIRE

R IR 52 AT 8 3k AN A R ] H Ath B AR 4
FHEIATR L 2 BAR AR FE AR D A 2
EETBERARAR LETEHHERE
BEEITRHDBEHZ10% - RITHERIE
Z AT B AR R H Ath BB AR AE AT S
BEZFBEHITEERITEERE
BIOTERDTFEODZRMDEE 4K
TSEBBAARRTREEITRDAE
2.30% o IMI 1218 B B R 1T F %
LERE(BEETEREARITER
) RELRAJEARITTESEE
BALTZRHOBE  THERARQA
BETRMAE1% - TME—FRH
e EARENERE VELES
AR R AL o
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31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Options granted mush be taken up within 21 days from the
date of grant, upon payment of HK$1.00 as consideration for
the grant. In respect of option holders other than suppliers
and customers, option may be exercised, which shall
commence 1 year from the date on which that option is
granted and shall expire on the earlier of the last day of a 10-
year period (i) from the date of such grant and (ii) from 28th
July 2003. In respect of option holders who are suppliers
and customers, such period shall commence on the date of
grant and expire 1 year thereafter. The subscription price is
determined by the Board, but shall not be less than the
highest of (a) the closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations on the
date of grant of that option, which must be a business day;
(b) the average closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant
of that option; and (c) the nominal value for the time being of

each shares of the Company.

No option was granted by the Company under the Scheme
since its adoption.
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32.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group participates in a mandatory
central pension scheme organised by the PRC government
for certain of its employees, the assets of which are held
separately from those of the Group. Contributions made are
based on a percentage of the eligible employees’ salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become
payable, in accordance with the rules of the scheme. The

employer’s contributions vest fully once they are made.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
retirement scheme administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$20,000. Contributions to the MPF
scheme vest immediately.

Under the above schemes, retirement benefits of existing
and retired employees are payable by the relevant scheme
administrators and the Group has no further obligations

beyond the annual contributions.

The aggregate amounts of employer’s contributions by the
Group in respect of retirement benefits scheme dealt with in
the consolidated income statement for the year are disclosed
in note 6(a) to these financial statements.
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33. COMMITMENTS 33. &iE

R=TE=F+-A=+-0 BH#
R B AE TR O A 2 B 7 A

At 31st December 2003, the total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable

as follows: ERIBERENT
The Group The Company
rEH AT
2003 2002 2003
—EE=F —EEF —EER=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFr ARBFT AR¥T T
Within 1 year 1F RN 950 965 197
After 1 year but within 5 years 1% 5F R 606 1,283 -
1,556 2,248 197

AEERKEMOBEEETY
X-BO—RZEVFHH—
EMFEAE AIREMEDA
FIRR&ER -HERE K
SEFRE ARBRTISHEE-
WEBHOMEERKAES-

The Group leases a number of properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one to four years, with an option to renew
the lease when all terms are renegotiated. Lease
payments are usually increased annually to reflect
market rentals. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.
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34. ACQUISITION OF FURTHER INTEREST IN A 34. E—SWE-—BHWEQIDER

SUBSIDIARY

In October 20083, the Group acquired the remaining 10% of RZZEZE=F+ A AKENUASK
its interest in Shanghai Shine Science, a subsidiary of the B#H AREEE57,0007T W HEERAA
Company, with a cash consideration of approximately AIMB AR LM EHRT10%Ea-
RMB657,000. After the acquisition, the Group owned 100% RUER NEEER L8 E100%
interest in Shanghai Shine Science. The acquisition of the Em - WENBARYAEREER
subsidiary had the following effects on the Group’s assets BECTENT:

and liabilities.

RMB’000
ARMFTT

Net assets acquisition of: WETISIBEE CFE:
Non-current assets FEMEBEE 362
Current assets MENEE 1,012
Non-current liabilities ERDEFE (23)
Current liabilities mE A& (65)
Net identifiable assets and liabilities AHANEENAMGEFRE 1,286
Goodwill arose on acquisition WHEMEARE (629)
Total purchase price paid, satisfied in cash BB EERE UReEN 657
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35.

36.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

(@)

After the balance sheet date, the Group acquired the
remaining 33% of its interest in Xinwangluo, a
subsidiary of the Company, at a consideration of
approximately RMB243,000. The Group nominated
Ms. Gu Yun, the Chairperson of the Company, to hold
the 33% interest in trust for and on behalf of the Group.
After this acquisition, the Group owned 100% interest

in Xinwangluo.

After the balance sheet date, the directors proposed a
final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note
11(a).

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted as a result

of changes in accounting policies for income taxes in order

to comply with SSAP12 (revised) as set out in note 3 above.
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REEBRZ XEEURELD
AR ®243,0007T B A AR A A
MEBARFNEHME 2HBT
3B -RNEFIREZEARNRE
FEEEZTAEFETRARER
£ EH B Z33%MAE - R ULEE
BAEEBBEHENEE 2
100% A% 1

by #ER®E EFEFZR{NKH
RE - —FBEHRME
11(a)°
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